
 

Page 1 of 262 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MARCH 02, 2020 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of February 17, 2020. 

2. Special Meeting of February 20, 2020. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

3. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2020 
Permeable Alley Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 21, 2020) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff presentation. 
 
d) Oral comments. 

4. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the 2020 Permeable Alley Project. 

5. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2020 
Street Construction Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 21, 2020) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff presentation. 
 
d) Oral comments. 

6. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the 2020 Street Construction Project. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

7. Receive and file a proclamation recognizing March 2, 2020 as Read Across Cedar Falls Day. 

1



 

Page 2 of 262 

8. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Julie Etheredge, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/2023.  
b) Sally Timmer, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/2023. 

9. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of February 17, 2020 relative to Public 
Safety Program Update. 

10. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - renewal. 
b) The Hydrant Firehouse Grill, 2002 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Double Tap, 312 Main Street, Class C liquor - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

11. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of the Iowa Certified Local Government (CLG) 
2019 Annual Report of the Historic Preservation Commission to the State Historical Society of Iowa. 

12. Resolution approving a Highway Corridor and Greenbelt (HCG) Overlay Zoning District site plan for 
construction of a hotel at 7200 Nordic Drive. 

13. Resolution approving and adopting revised Rules of Procedure for the Board of Adjustment. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an application to the Black Hawk County 
Metropolitan Area Transportation Policy Board (MPO) for Iowa’s Transportation Alternatives Program 
(TAP) funding relative to the Lake Street Trail Project. 

15. Resolution approving submission of an application to the Black Hawk County Metropolitan Area 
Transportation Policy Board (MPO) for Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) funding relative 
to the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

16. Resolution approving and accepting the low bid, and approving and authorizing execution of a 
Rehabilitation Contract with Daniels Home Improvement, relative to a HOME housing rehabilitation 
project. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Sturgis Falls Celebration Agreement for Use of 
City Parks and Services with Sturgis Falls Celebration, Inc. 

18. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Peterson Contractors, 
Inc. for the University Avenue Reconstruction Project, Phase 3. 

19. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $1,019,447.57, for the 12th Street Reconstruction Project. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of four Owner Purchase Agreements, and approving 
and accepting four Temporary Construction Easements, in conjunction with the 12th Street 
Reconstruction Project. 

21. Resolution setting March 16, 2020 as the date of public hearing on a proposal to undertake a public 
improvement project for the Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project and to authorize acquisition of 
private property for said project. 

Old Business 

22. Repass over Mayor's veto, Resolution #21,893, approving immediate implementation of the Public 
Safety Program including reorganization of the Public Safety Department. (requires at least five aye 
votes to override Mayor's veto) 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

2



 

Page 3 of 262 

23. Allow Bills and Payroll of March 2, 2020. 

City Council Referrals 

24. Refer to the Committee of the Whole a request for a city-sponsored fireworks display. 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, FEBRUARY 17, 2020 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:35 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Absent: 
None. 

 
52674 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of February 3, 2020 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52675 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 5, 

2020, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed FY2021 
Budget for the City of Cedar Falls. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded 
by Miller that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52676 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed Budget. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Finance and 
Business Operations Director Rodenbeck provided a brief summary of the 
proposed Budget and Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, commented briefly and had 
additional questions regarding 411 pensions. There being no one else present 
wishing to speak about the proposed Budget, the Mayor declared the hearing 
closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52677 -    It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,875, 

approving and adopting the FY2021 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls, be 
adopted. Following responses by Councilmembers Kruse and Taiber to the 
previous speaker, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,875 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52678 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 7, 

2020, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 12th Street 
Reconstruction Project. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52679 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Principal 
Engineer Fitch provided a brief summary of the proposed project. There being no 
one else present wishing to speak about the proposed plans, etc., the Mayor 

4

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 
 
52680 -    It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,876, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 12th Street Reconstruction Project, be adopted. Following questions 
by Councilmember Kruse and response by Principal Engineer Fitch, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,876 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52681 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file a proclamation recognizing February 14, 2020 as the 19th 
Amendment Centennial Kick-Off Day. 

 
Receive and file a proclamation recognizing February 19, 2020 as Community 
Main Street Volunteer Appreciation Day. 

 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of February 3, 2020 
relative to the following items:  
a) FY21 Budget.  
b) Bills & Payroll. 

 
Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of February 3, 2020 
relative to Northern Cedar Falls Drainage Study. 
 
Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of February 5, 2020 
relative to a hearing to consider the appeal of an employee grievance denial. 

 
Receive and file a Petition Requesting Special Election to fill a vacancy in the 
office of Council Member At Large. 

 
Approve the following applications for liquor licenses:  
a) College Square Cinema, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - 

renewal.  
b) Chad's Pizza and Restaurant, 909 West 23rd Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 

service - renewal.  
c) Panther Lounge, 210 East 18th Street, Class C liquor - renewal.  
d) Hy-Vee Tasting Room, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C liquor - 

change in ownership. 
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
52682 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr to receive and file the 2019 

Annual Reports of the Planning & Zoning Commission, Board of Adjustment, 
Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental Committee/Board of Rental 
Housing Appeals, Housing Commission and Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee. Following annual report highlights by Cedar Falls Bicycle and 

5

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Pedestrian Advisory Committee representative Andrew Shroll, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52683 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 
Resolution #21,877, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
clean up the property located at 1704 Parker Street. 
 
Resolution #21,878, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
clean up the property located at 804-804 1/2 Seerley Boulevard. 
 
Resolution #21,879, approving six occupancy permits prior to the acceptance of 
public improvements in Prairie Winds 4th Addition, as recommended by city staff. 
 
Resolution #21,880, approving a Claim for Non-Residential Relocation 
Assistance Reimbursement, in conjunction with the West 1st Street 
Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,881, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with The Cedar Falls Gospel Hall 
Association relative to a post-construction storm water management plan for Lot 
367 in S.A. Bishop's Replat of a part of Pacific Addition. 
 
Resolution #21,882, approving and accepting the contract and bond of K. 
Cunningham Construction Company, Inc., relative to the Downtown Streetscape 
and Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,883, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Terracon Consultants, Inc. to complete an Iowa DNR 
Tier 1 Report, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,884, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with Terracon 
Consultants, Inc. for an extension of the 2019 Construction Testing Services 
through the 2021 construction season. 
 
Resolution #21,885, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC relative to the 
2020 Bridge Inspection Project. 
 
Resolution #21,886, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC relative to the 
West 27th Street Corridor Study-Hudson Road to Union Road. 
 
Resolution #21,887, receiving and filing, and setting March 2, 2020 as the date of 
public hearing on, the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the 2020 Permeable Alley Project. 

6

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 
Resolution #21,888, receiving and filing, and setting March 2, 2020 as the date of 
public hearing on, the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the 2020 Street Construction Project. 
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,877 through #21,888 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52684 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Harding that Resolution #21,889, calling 

for a Special Election to fill the vacancy for the office of City Council At Large, be 
adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers Miller and deBuhr and 
responses by City Administrator Gaines, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,889 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52685 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,890, 

approving and adopting the FY2021 City Council Goals & Objectives, be 
adopted. Councilmember Sires commented briefly. 

  
 Councilmember Harding then motioned to remove the Public Safety Officer 

section. Following comments by Mayor Green, Councilmember Harding withdrew 
his motion.  

 
 The Mayor then put the question on the original motion and upon call of the roll, 

the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Darrah, 
Taiber. Nay: Harding, Sires. Motion carried 5-2. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,890 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52686 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Taiber that Resolution #21,891, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Consolidated Public Safety 
Communications 28E Agreement with participating government agencies in 
Black Hawk County relative to providing consolidated dispatch and 
communications services, be adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers 
deBuhr, Kruse and Taiber and responses by Public Safety Services Director 
Olson, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,891 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52687 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,892, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with River Place 
Properties, LC relative to conveyance of certain real estate back to the City, be 
adopted. Following a question by Councilmember Sires and responses by 
Community Development Director Sheetz and Developer Mark Kittrell, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 

7

ITEM 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,892 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52688 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the bills and payroll of 

February 17, 2020 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52689 -    It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole, on behalf of Community Main Street, a request to discuss eliminating 
Downtown area parking enforcement on Saturdays. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
52690 -    Councilmember Darrah thanked Carol Lilly for her work as the Community Main 

Street Director. 
 
52691 -    Northern Iowa Student Government Liaison Rebecca Aberle announced 

upcoming events happening at the University of Northern Iowa.  
 
52692 -    Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, commented on the right to vote, fireworks on July 

4th and pension benefits. Mayor Green responded after an additional fireworks 
question by Councilmember Kruse. 

 
      LeaAnn Saul, 1825 West Greenhill Road, had questions and comments on rental 

of City facilities to political parties and expressed disappointment in the vote 
during the City Council Work Session on February 17, 2020. City Attorney 
Rogers and Mayor Green responded to questions by Ms. Saul and an additional 
question by Councilmember Kruse regarding the practice of not renting City 
facilities to political parties.  

 
      Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way, had questions on the Calls for Service 

statistics and expressed his displeasure with the upcoming Special Council 
Meeting on February 20, 2020.  

 
52693 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:18 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

8

ITEM 1.



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, FEBRUARY 20, 2020 

SPECIAL MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Special Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 6:00 P.M. on the above date.  
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse (via phone), Harding, Darrah, Sires, 
Taiber. Absent: None. 

 
52694 -    It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,893, 

approving immediate implementation of the Public Safety Program including 
reorganization of the Public Safety Department, be adopted. Public Safety 
Services Director Olson responded to questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Harding, Sires, Taiber, Miller, Darrah and deBuhr.  

 
      Following a presentation by Public Safety Services Director Olson, it was moved 

by Miller and seconded by Darrah to allow questions and comments by 
Councilmembers after public speaker comments. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Councilmembers and city staff responded to questions and comments by the 
following individuals throughout public comment. 
 
The following individuals spoke in opposition to the immediate implementation: 
Daniel Trelka, 173 Graceline Boulevard, Waterloo 
Jeremy and Tracy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street 
Emily Thode, 1710 Iowa Street 
Greg Saul, 1825 West Greenhill Road 
Amy Miller, 1922 Pin Oak Drive 
Thomas (T.J.) Frein, 1319 Austin Way 
Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street 
Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street 
Linda Minikus, 1626 West Lone Tree Road 
Richard Hinz, 1219 Western Avenue 
Brandon Pflanzer, 613 Charismatic Lane, Iowa City (representing the Iowa 
Professional Firefighters Association) 
Marybeth Boelts, 610 West 6th Street 
Whitney Smith, 2904 Neola Street 
Dale Ohl, 3609 Clearview Drive 
Sam Brown, 19 Riverview Drive NE, Iowa City 
Sharon Regenold, 108 Lilliput Lane 
Art Lupkes, 3227 Midway Drive 
Nancy Moeller, 1029 Barrington Drive 
Rich Boesen, 3219 Midway Drive 
Troy Winters, 1517 West 12th Street 
Sheri Purdy, 134 Margene Court, Raymond 
Cathy Pingel, 311 Angie Drive 
Amanda Peyton, 1118 Rocky Ridge Road 

9

ITEM 2.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

 
 

      The following individuals spoke in support of the immediate implementation: 
Jason Mehmen, 1107 Eagle Ridge Road 
Kelly Dunn, 915 Royal Drive 
Jenny Leeper, 1304 Washington Street 
Natalie Lang, 2116 South Oak Avenue 
Paula Fischels, 1327 Lake Ridge Drive 
 
Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, commented on the role of the mayor. 
Shawn Frederiksen, 1109 Columbine Drive, spoke about a lack of teamwork. 

 
The Mayor announced a short recess from 8:05 P.M. to 8:15 P.M. and continued 
with public comment and discussion upon reconvening. 
 
Following additional questions and comments by City Councilmembers, and 
responses by Director Olson, it was moved by Taiber and seconded by Darrah to 
amend the motion to add establishment of a continuous improvement panel or 
taskforce to explore issues through this reorganization process. Upon further 
clarification and a statement by Mayor Green, the motion to amend was 
withdrawn by Councilmember Taiber. 
 
The Mayor then put the question on the original motion and upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Darrah, 
Taiber. Nay: Harding, Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#21,893 duly passed and adopted. 
 
It was then moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse to refer to city staff creation 
of a taskforce to address issues during implementation of reorganization. The 
motion carried 5-2, with Harding and Sires voting nay. 

 
52695 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the meeting be adjourned at 

9:50 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

10

ITEM 2.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: February 26, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 2020 Permeable Alley Project 
  Project No. RC-000-3225 
  Public Hearing 
 
This project involves the installation of two full permeable alleys. Work shall include a 
combination of excavation and backfill of the alley areas; removal of driveway and sidewalk; 
subdrain; removal and replacement of PCC curb & gutter; placement of storage and filter 
aggregate; permeable interlocking clay brick paver installation, seeding, and concrete or gravel 
driveway replacement. 
 
The alleys are prioritized based on a number of factors: Operation & Maintenance priority, age, 
trash pickup, active public concern, slope, drainage area and proximity to existing storm sewer 
infrastructure. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $229,100.00. The project will be 
funded by Street Construction Fund (SCF) and Storm Water Bond (STB) funding sources.  
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department. 
 
xc: David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

  

11

ITEM 3.



1 TOPSOIL, FURNISH & SPREAD 50 30 80 C.Y. $50.00 $3,800.00
2 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY WASTE 411 178 589 C.Y. $18.00 $10,100.00
3 MODIFIED SUBBASE 12" 36 0 36 S.Y. $20.00 $700.00
4 SUBDRAIN CLEANOUT, TYPE A-1, 6" 2 2 4 EACH $600.00 $2,300.00
5 VALVE EXTENSION 1 1 2 EACH $250.00 $500.00
6 CURB & GUTTER, 7" P.C.C., 2.5' WIDE 24 48 72 L.F. $50.00 $3,500.00
7 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY 39 86 125 S.Y. $10.00 $1,200.00
8 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK 39 49 88 S.Y. $10.00 $900.00
9 SIDEWALK, 6" P.C.C. 39 49 88 S.Y. $90.00 $7,600.00
10 DRIVEWAY, 6" P.C.C. 148 141 289 S.Y. $80.00 $22,000.00
11 DRIVEWAY, GRANULAR, 1" ROADSTONE 15 18 33 S.Y. $10.00 $400.00
12 PATCH, COMPOSTITE HMA / P.C.C. 27 0 27 S.Y. $500.00 $12,700.00
13 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER 24 48 72 L.F. $10.00 $700.00
14 ENGINEERING FABRIC 931 416 1,347 S.Y. $5.00 $6,400.00
15 UNDERDRAIN, 6" PLASTIC PERFORATED, TYPE S 658 296 954 L.F. $13.00 $11,800.00
16 STORAGE AGGREGATE, 8" 798 357 1,155 S.Y. $15.00 $16,500.00
17 FILTER AGGREGATE, 4" 798 357 1,155 S.Y. $10.00 $11,000.00
18 PERMEABLE INTERLOCKING PAVERS, CLAY BRICK 2,362 1,031 3,393 S.F. $12.00 $38,700.00
19 PCC EDGE RESTRAINT, 6" CONCRETE SLAB, 4' WIDE 536 241 777 S.Y. $55.00 $40,600.00
20 TRAFFIC CONTROL 1 1 1 L.S. $5,000.00 $4,800.00
21 HYDRAULIC SEEDING 2,650 1,610 4,260 S.F. $2.00 $8,100.00
22 WATTLE, STRAW, 9" 1,254 616 1,870 L.F. $6.00 $10,700.00
23 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE 1 8 9 EACH $230.00 $2,000.00
24 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE 1 8 9 EACH $125.00 $1,100.00
25 MOBILIZATION 1 1 1 EACH $11,000.00 $11,000.00

$149,950.00
$79,150.00

$229,100.00TOTAL PRELIMINARY ESTIMATE OF COST TOTAL:

22nd - SEERLEY & TREMONT - FRANKLIN ESTIMATED COST:
4th - 5th & IOWA - TREMONT ESTIMATED COST:

2020 PERMEABLE ALLEY PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. ST-000-3225

PAVERS / P.C.C. PAVING / STORM SEWER
PRELIMINARY ESTIMATE OF COST & QUANTITIES

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS UNIT PRICE
EXTENDED 

PRICE

22ND -
SEERLEY & 
TREMONT - 
FRANKLIN

ITEM 
NO.

TOTAL 
ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY

4TH - 5TH & 
IOWA - 

TREMONT

12

ITEM 3.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: February 26, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 2020 Street Construction Project 
  Project No. RC-000-3185 
  Public Hearing 
 
This project involves the construction of portions of eleven (11) City streets totaling 2.74 miles. 
Lilac Lane – McClain Dr to Rownd St 
Clearview Drive – Primrose Dr to Orchard Dr 
Madison Street – Valley Park Dr to Waterloo Rd 
11th Street – Division St to College St 
Carlton Drive – Lilac Lane to Maplewood Dr 
Chateau Court – 4th St south to cul-de-sac 
26th Street – Iowa St to Tremont St 
Holmes Drive – 4th St south to Holmes Elementary 
Seerley Blvd – Valley Park Dr to Melrose Dr 
Ashland Avenue – Acorn Lane to Pin Oak Dr 
N. Union Road – 1st St to North City Limits 
 
Work will include 10,550 SY removal and replacement of the existing pavement; 14,680 SY 
removal of HMA surfacing and milling; 5,340 ton HMA overlays; 2,590 LF of PCC Curb and 
Gutter; subgrade preparation; 3,432 LF of various sized storm sewer; 23 new storm sewer 
intakes; 1,250 LF of sanitary sewer replacement; sanitary sewer services; 2,340 LF of 4” 6” and 
8” water main relocation; 6,120 LF of subdrain installation; replacement of driveway approaches 
and pedestrian ramps. In addition, the project requires intake modifications; 14,135 SY of 5” 
cold-in-place recycled asphalt pavement; granular shouldering; pipe lining; placement of 
revetment stone; installation of signage and associated posts and striping.   
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $3,476,320.00. The project will be 
funded by Local Option Sales Tax, Street Construction Fund, GO 2020, Sanitary Sewer Rental 
Fund and Cedar Falls Utilities funding sources.  
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department. 
 
xc: David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

  

13

ITEM 5.



ITEM UNIT TOTAL
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY PRICE COST

1 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT S.Y. 10564 $5.00 $50,180.00
2 REMOVAL OF A.C.C. SURFACING S.Y. 9029 $4.00 $34,320.00
3 REMOVAL OF A.C.C. SURFACING (MILLING) S.Y. 5648 $5.25 $28,170.00
4 REMOVAL OF P.C.C./A.C.C. SURFACE (TAPER MILLING) S.Y. 1988 $36.50 $68,950.00
5 REMOVAL OF CURB L.F. 2545 $10.50 $25,390.00
6 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. 1628 $5.00 $7,740.00
7 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 98 $8.50 $800.00
8 REMOVALS AS PER PLAN UNITS 71.75 $500.00 $34,090.00
9 SAW CUTTING FOR REMOVALS L.F. 3844 $6.00 $21,920.00
10 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. 4040 $11.00 $42,220.00
11 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, UNSTABLE MATERIAL C.Y. 404 $11.00 $4,220.00
12 EXCAVATION , CLASS 12, BOULDERS C.Y. 25 $30.00 $720.00
13 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 7 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 10564 $50.00 $501,790.00
14 HMA, (ST), SURF., 1/2", PG58-28S TON 3890 $120.00 $443,410.00
15 HMA, (ST), BASE, 3/4", PG58-28S TON 1448 $120.00 $165,020.00
16 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.5 FT WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 2240 $25.00 $53,200.00
17 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 3.5 FT WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 43 $33.00 $1,350.00
18 CURB, PCC 8 IN. 5.0 FT WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 305 $35.00 $10,150.00
19 COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE STA. 26 $300.00 $7,360.00
20 GEOGRID S.Y. 10309 $3.50 $34,280.00
21 MODIFIED SUBBASE, 12 IN. S.Y. 13448 $14.00 $178,870.00
22 SURFACING, 1-INCH ROADSTONE TONS 30 $30.00 $860.00
23 TOPSOIL, FURNISH & SPREAD C.Y. 922 $25.00 $21,900.00
24 SOD, PROVIDE AND PLACE S.F. 47300 $0.75 $33,710.00
25 HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. 1000 $0.60 $570.00
26 WATERING SOD M-GAL 60 $200.00 $11,400.00
27 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 1552 $50.00 $73,740.00
28 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 574 $45.00 $24,530.00
29 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 88 $60.00 $5,040.00
30 PEDESTRIAN RAMPS, DETECTABLE WARNING S.F. 38 $50.00 $1,810.00
31 PATCH, P.C.C., FULL DEPTH, "M" MIX S.Y. 50 $300.00 $14,250.00
32 PATCH, HMA (ST) SURFACE, 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 50 $200.00 $9,500.00
33 INTAKE, SW-507 EACH 2 $5,600.00 $10,640.00
34 INTAKE, SW-509 EACH 1 $6,000.00 $5,700.00
35 INTAKE, TYPE B EACH 2 $4,500.00 $8,550.00
36 INTAKE, TYPE D EACH 18 $5,500.00 $94,050.00
37 INTAKE, TYPE C TOP & INSERT EACH 4 $2,000.00 $7,600.00
38 INTAKE, TYPE E TOP & INSERT EACH 1 $6,000.00 $5,700.00
39 INTAKE, SINGLE FLAT INSERT EACH 1 $1,500.00 $1,430.00
40 INTAKE, DOUBLE FLAT INSERT EACH 1 $2,500.00 $2,380.00
41 INTAKE, TYPE B INSERT EACH 4 $2,000.00 $7,600.00
42 INTAKE, TYPE D INSERT EACH 1 $3,000.00 $2,850.00
43 MANHOLE, ADJUSTMENT, MINOR EACH 16 $1,000.00 $15,200.00
44 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401 EACH 2 $4,250.00 $8,080.00
45 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301 EACH 4 $6,000.00 $22,800.00
46 SEWER, STORM, 15 IN. HDPE L.F. 2190 $55.00 $114,430.00
47 SEWER, STORM, 15 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. 84 $58.00 $4,630.00
48 SEWER, STORM, 18 IN. HDPE L.F. 406 $60.00 $23,150.00
49 SEWER, STORM, 18 IN. R.C.P. 2000D L.F. 32 $65.00 $1,980.00
50 SEWER, STORM, 24 IN. HDPE  L.F. 652 $70.00 $43,360.00
51 SEWER, STORM, 24 IN. R.C.P. 2000D L.F. 58 $100.00 $5,510.00
52 SEWER, STORM, 30 IN. HDPE  L.F. 10 $100.00 $950.00
53 GRANULAR SHOULDERING, TYPE A TONS 942 $35.00 $31,330.00
54 SPECIAL PIPE CONNECTIONS, SW-211 EACH 2 $700.00 $1,330.00
55 GRANULAR BACKFILL TONS 1600 $25.00 $38,000.00
56 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. L.F. 6119 $12.00 $69,760.00
57 SUBDRAIN, OUTLET, 6 IN. C.M.P. EACH 23 $400.00 $8,740.00
58 SUBDRAIN, SUMP PUMP TAP EACH 81 $400.00 $30,780.00
59 FIELD TILE, 4 IN. TO 8 IN., FIELD REPAIR L.F. 30 $25.00 $720.00
60 MAILBOXES, RELOCATE & REINSTALL (PER POST) EACH 28 $500.00 $13,300.00
61 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1 $125,000.00 $118,750.00
62 FLAGGERS DAYS 10 $1,000.00 $9,500.00
63 VALVE ADJUSTMENT EACH 10 $300.00 $2,850.00
64 SPRINKLER HEADS, REMOVE & PLUG EACH 5 $150.00 $720.00
65 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, PAINTED STA. 199 $40.00 $7,550.00
66 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, PAINTED SYMBOLS EACH 5 $75.00 $360.00
67 INTAKE WELL, SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 21 $250.00 $4,990.00
68 INTAKE, SEDIMENT FILTER L.F. 396 $15.00 $5,650.00
69 CLEANING OF SEDIMENT FILTER BASINS EACH 21 $200.00 $3,990.00
70 SIGN POST, SQUARE TUBING 14 GAUGE 2" GALVANIZED EACH 15 $175.00 $2,500.00
71 RECEIVER, SIGN POST, SQUARE TUBING 12 GAUGE 2 1/4" GALVANIZED EACH 15 $40.00 $570.00
72 TYPE A SIGNS, ALUMINUM EACH 15 $125.00 $1,790.00
73 STREET SWEEPING HRS. 31 $200.00 $5,890.00
74 BASE, CLEANING AND PREPARATION S.Y. 31842 $1.25 $37,820.00
75 SEWER, SANITARY, 12" TRUSS PIPE L.F. 1254 $70.00 $83,400.00
76 SEWER SERVICES SANITARY, 4" SDR 23.5 L.F. 440 $100.00 $41,800.00
77 PIPE, 4" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 40 $60.00 $2,280.00
78 PIPE, 6" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 20 $65.00 $1,240.00
79 PIPE 8" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 2280 $70.00 $151,620.00
80 BEND, 4" MJ 90° EACH 6 $250.00 $1,430.00
81 BEND, 6" MJ 90° EACH 4 $300.00 $1,140.00
82 BEND, 8" MJ 90° EACH 2 $350.00 $670.00
83 TEE, 8" X 6" MJ EACH 2 $500.00 $950.00
84 TEE, 8" X 8" MJ EACH 1 $525.00 $500.00
85 TEE, 6" X 6" MJ X SW EACH 1 $550.00 $530.00
86 TEE, 8" X 6" MJ X SW EACH 6 $450.00 $2,570.00
87 CROSS, 6" X 6" MJ X MJ  EACH 1 $500.00 $480.00
88 CROSS, 8" X 8" MJ X MJ EACH 1 $550.00 $530.00
89 REDUCER, 6" X 4" MJ X PE EACH 1 $375.00 $360.00
90 REDUCER, 8" X 4" MJ X PE EACH 3 $425.00 $1,220.00
91 REDUCER, 8" X 6" MJ X PE EACH 1 $425.00 $410.00
92 SLEEVE, 4" X 12" SOLID EACH 1 $325.00 $310.00
93 SLEEVE, 6" X 12" SOLID EACH 1 $350.00 $340.00
94 SLEEVE, 8" X 12" SOLID EACH 1 $425.00 $410.00
95 VALVE , 6" MJ GATE W/ BOX EACH 1 $2,000.00 $1,900.00
96 VALVE, 8" MJ GATE W/ BOX EACH 7 $2,200.00 $14,630.00
97 CAP, 4" MJ EACH 4 $175.00 $670.00
98 CAP, 6" MJ EACH 3 $200.00 $570.00
99 HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 7 $5,200.00 $34,580.00
100 REMOVE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 5 $1,400.00 $6,650.00
101 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 4" EACH 15 $150.00 $2,140.00
102 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 6" EACH 11 $200.00 $2,090.00
103 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 8" EACH 24 $225.00 $5,130.00
104 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 4" EACH 1 $200.00 $190.00
105 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 6" EACH 4 $225.00 $860.00
106 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 8" EACH 19 $275.00 $4,970.00
107 SERVICE SHORTSIDE, 3/4" EACH 21 $1,750.00 $34,920.00
108 SERVICE, LONGSIDE, 3/4" EACH 20 $2,000.00 $38,000.00
109 6" NITRILE GASKETS EACH 3 $150.00 $430.00
110 8" NITRILE GASKETS EACH 68 $175.00 $11,310.00
111 CASTING/CHIMNEY REPLACEMENT PCC MANHOLE IN PAVEMENT EACH 12 $3,500.00 $39,900.00
112 FOAMED ASPHALT BINDER 52-34S TON 78 $550.00 $40,760.00
113 COLD-IN-PLACE RECYCLED ASPHALT PAVEMENT, 5" S.Y. 14134 $5.00 $67,140.00
114 APRON, CONCRETE 30" (TYPE 2) EACH 2 $1,800.00 $3,420.00
115 REVETMENT STONE, CLASS "E" TONS 20 $50.00 $950.00
116 PIPE LINING, 30" RCP STORM SEWER L.S. 1 $10,000.00 $9,500.00
117 3000 LB, PCC MIX C.Y. 15 $180.00 $2,480.00
118 MOBILIZATION L.S. 1 $166,000.00 $166,000.00

$2,962,390.00
$187,900.00
$326,030.00

$3,476,320.00

FEBRUARY 10, 2020

2020 STREET CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
P.C.C. PAVING / SUBDRAINAGE

CITY PROJECT NO. RC - 000 - 3185
FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS AND QUANTITIES

TOTAL STREET RECONSTRUCTION
TOTAL SANITARY WORK

TOTAL WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE
14

ITEM 5.



15

ITEM 7.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: February 28, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Appointment/Reappointment of Historic Preservation Commission Members 

 REF: Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-343: Historic Preservation Commission 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a), I am recommending the following individuals for 

appointment and reappointment to the Cedar Falls Historic Preservation Commission for a 

term of three years.  

 

a. Julie Etheredge (Reappointment) – term ends 3/31/2023 

b. Sally Timmer (Appointment to replace Meridith Main) – term ends 3/21/2023 

 

2. I have reviewed the applications and credentials of the above applicants, and believe they 

possess the “positive interest in historic preservation, possessing interest or expertise in 

architecture, architectural history, historic preservation, city planning, building 

rehabilitation, conservation in general or real estate” as is required by reference (a). 

 

# 

 

 

16

ITEM 8.



17

ITEM 8.



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Cedar Falls Council Chambers  

February 17, 2020 
 

The City Council held a special work session in the City Hall Council Chambers at 5:00 
p.m. on February 17, 2020, with the following persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert M. 
Green, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and 
Dave Sires (arrived at 5:03 pm). Staff members attended from all City Departments. 
Andrew Wind from the Waterloo Courier attended, as well as members of the 
community.  

Mayor Green introduced the only item on the agenda, Public Safety Program Update.  
Mayor Green read an opening statement regarding tonight’s work session.  Jeff Olson 
Director of Public Safety Services reviewed calls for service for both fire and police 
operations and how they compare to the regional and national calls for service.  He 
stated the Public Safety Program was reviewed and discussed at the past Council Goal 
Setting in December.  He then reviewed the history of the alternative staffing leading up 
to the Public Safety Officers job class.  He stated they received resistance at first from 
both collective bargaining groups; however in 2014 city staff received a letter from the 
Teamsters Union to create a Public Safety Officer Job class.  Director Olson stated in 
2016 all new hires were to be Public Safety Officers, rather than a police officer or a 
firefighter.  He explained this combination position allowed for employees to be 
assigned to a 24-hour shift in fire operations, which started in 2019.   

Director Olson reviewed other fire operation models throughout the United States and 
Iowa.   He explained city staff and some council members visited Kalamazoo, MI, a 
public safety model city.  He said they received similar resistance through the transition 
process, but they are now 100% a public safety model.  Director Olson reviewed the 
current staffing levels; he stated they currently have 60 employees who can report to 
police operations and 67 employees who can report to fire operations; 53 employees 
are Public Safety Officers.   

Director Olson explained the compressed air foam (CAF) system which has aided to the 
public safety employee’s response to a fire incident.  Two separate videos were played 
to demonstrate the CAF system.  Director Olson stated the second video shows what 
can happen when the Public Safety Department works together as a team to take 
immediate action to mitigate a fire.  A brief discussion was held about the CAF system. 

Director Olson proceeded on with the current hiring standards for a Public Safety 
Officer.  He stated the Cooper Physical Agility Test is used and is similar to military 
testing and to what the City of Ames uses. He explained the prior Candidate Physical 
Agility Test (CPAT) a firefighter candidate took has been considered discriminatory; this 
is why they have gone with the Cooper Physical Agility Test.  He stated the Cooper test 
is an entry level test and a current Public Safety employee is not required to take this 
physical agility test again after passing it upon hire.   Director Olson stated new 
employees have various police training they are to complete within the first year of their 
employment.  He explained a new hire has three years to complete and pass all of the 
required fire training.   He explained a new employee is given the tools to succeed, 
throughout the different training phases.  Council asked questions with regards to the 

18

ITEM 9.



fire training.  Director Olson said there are five different modules and they must take a 
written test and pass, and also pass a skills test, both administered by the State of Iowa.  
He explained they have a large monthly training event for all fire operations employees 
and each Public Safety Officer will have a specific monthly checklist for their own 
training needs.   

Director Olson explained their Public Safety staffing has increased the number of 
personnel responding to police and fire calls.  Stating before the Public Safety program, 
there may be 7-8 personnel responding to a fire call, and since implementation there is 
anywhere from 12-23 personnel responding.  He reviewed the advantages and 
efficiencies gained by the Public Safety model; stating Public Safety staff is able to work 
on police duties during downtime, which is efficient use of the employees.  Director 
Olson explained the ISO rating process and in the past we reported the number of 
personnel responding as the minimum staffing of six employees and now we can look at 
the Public Safety employees average hours worked, less vacation and other benefit 
hours, this shows an increase to 15 employees for 2019.  He stated the City of Cedar 
Falls’ ISO rating is a three, which is in the top 3.5% in Iowa.  A brief discussion was 
held.  Director Olson reviewed the ISO visit and the information they gather, which goes 
into their rating. He stated Cedar Falls Utilities and Black Hawk County Dispatch supply 
information in addition to the City’s.  He stated the City of Waterloo has an ISO rating of 
two.   

Director Olson reviewed testimonials they received from residents, stating seeing the 
program in action made them believers of the Public Safety model. He reviewed six fire 
calls from 2019 and reported the number of firefighters and PSO’s who reported to the 
calls.  They had as many as 23 personnel reporting to two of the fire calls.  Director 
Olson reviewed three different Public Safety Department organizational charts. He 
recapped the advantages of the program.  Director Olson reviewed three Public Safety 
model options: 

1. Full implementation of Public Safety Model; allows for more responding at less 
cost and more efficient use of employees (down time). 

2. Modify Public Safety Model. 

3. Return to separate police and fire; significantly less responders or more costs.  

Mayor Green opened it up for questions from the Council.  Councilmember Harding 
commented on the concerns he has heard; retention of training knowledge and 
budgetary increases, cited a meeting with a panel of experts to review the Public Safety 
program is needed.  Director Olson stated the monthly checklist which has been 
implemented has made improvements on training retention.  Councilmember Taiber 
asked about incorporating the CPAT after 1-year on the job.  Director Olson stated the 
current Cooper Physical Agility test has worked well for a new hire and currently there is 
not a physical test after hiring.  Councilmember Harding stated there should be a 
meeting with fire personnel to gather their views.  Director Olson stated they have tried 
to meet with the fire union to discuss the Public Safety program, but they canceled a 
meeting that was set up with Public Employment Relations Board (PERB). 
Councilmember Kruse commented the cross-training better utilizes the fire operations 
employee since the Public Safety Officers can work on police duties during their 

19

ITEM 9.



downtime.  Councilmember Miller commented the fire union is unwilling to work with the 
program and the remaining staff deserves the credit for carrying through with the Public 
Safety program.  Councilmember Sires stated we should hire fire personnel who 
graduate from the Hawkeye Community College program and have 15 core firefighters.    
Councilmember Harding motioned to have a work session for discussion with a panel of 
experts to hear from both sides.  Councilmember Darrah seconded the motion. 
Councilmember Darrah stated there have been no positive suggestions that have come 
forward from the fire union personnel.  Councilmember Taiber stated we have 
professional staff here at the City and we implemented the program to use our 
resources efficiently.  Councilmember Kruse commented we have heard from the fire 
union through the grievance process, not through positive suggestions regarding the 
Public Safety program.  He said we have adjusted and implemented changes with 
regards to training. 

Mayor Green reviewed a slide which outlines a plan to fully vet the Public Safety 
Program through six work sessions over the next 18-months. He said this would also 
include an anonymous employee survey completed at an estimated cost of $2,000.  
Mayor called for the vote on the motion.  Motion failed. (Aye: Darrah, Harding, Sires; 
Nay: deBuhr, Kruse, Miller, Taiber) Councilmember Miller motioned to a full 
implementation of the Public Safety Program and hold a special Council meeting on 
Thursday, February 20, 2020 to have Director Jeff Olson review the steps in the 
process.  Susan deBuhr seconded the motion.  A brief discussion was held. 
Councilmember Taiber asked for constituents to pass their concerns on to their 
Councilmember.  Mayor Green called for the vote on the motion.  Motion passed. (Aye: 
Darrah, deBuhr, Kruse, Miller, Taiber; Nay: Harding and Sires)  Councilmember Miller 
motioned to have the meeting held at 5 p.m. on February 20, 2020, seconded by 
Councilmember Kruse.  After a brief discussion, Councilmember Kruse amended the 
motion to 6 p.m. on February 20, 2020, seconded by Councilmember Miller.  The Mayor 
put the question on the amendment.  The motion passed as amended. (Aye: Darrah, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Miller and Taiber; Nay: Harding and Sires)  The Mayor put the question 
on the original motion.  The amended motion passed. (Aye: Darrah, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Miller and Taiber; Nay: Harding and Sires) 

There being no further discussion, Nick Taiber motioned to adjourn the work session, 
Mark Miller seconded the motion, and the motion carried unanimously. Mayor Green 
adjourned the meeting at 7:23 p.m.  

 

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

20

ITEM 9.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Assistant Police Chief 

Date:  March 02, 2020 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Class B beer & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

b) The Hydrant Firehouse Grill, 2002 College Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

c) Double Tap, 312 Main Street, Class C liquor - new. 

21

ITEM 10.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

16  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

             TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Planner I 
 
 DATE: February 26, 2020  
 
 SUBJECT: Certified Local Government Annual Report 
                       
 
In order to be eligible for the Certified Local Government (CLG) grant programs the City of 
Cedar Falls must have and maintain a Certified Local Government Agreement with the State of 
Iowa and the National Park Service. Under the CLG Agreement with the State, Historic 
Preservation Commissions are responsible for submitting an annual report summarizing the city 
or county's historic preservation work during the calendar year.  
 
This report documents that the City of Cedar Falls’ Historic Preservation Commission has met 
the requirements of the CLG program and would like to continue its CLG status. During this 
year, the Historic Preservation Commission was able to guide the Wild Historic District with the 
help of consultant to get the district on the National Register of Historic Places, one of the 
biggest achievements this year. The Commission also sponsored an educational program for 
the community of Cedar Falls by making the walk through video of Fairview Cemetery, narrated 
by a history professor at University of Iowa and then screening the video partnering with Hearst 
Center for Arts. In addition, Commission members participated in and provided input on the 
City’s Imagine Downtown Vision Plan.  This plan was adopted in November 2019, and one of 
the goals of the plan is to respect the historic character of Downtown Cedar Falls by 
encouraging the re-use of existing historic buildings, and developing zoning strategies for new 
development that respect the historic scale and character of the downtown area.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends that City Council adopt the following: 
 

1. Resolution approving and authorizing the submittal of the 2019 Certified Local 
Government (CLG)/Historic Preservation Commission annual report to the State Historic 
Preservation Office. 

 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.  

 
XC: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

Karen Howard, Planning & Community Service Manager 
 Julie Etheredge, Chair, Historic Preservation Commission         

22

ITEM 11.



 

23

ITEM 11.



CLG Annual Report 2019 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

IOWA CERTIFIED LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
2019 ANNUAL REPORT (January 2019-December 2019) 

 
NAME OF THE CITY, COUNTY, OR LAND USE DISTRICT: City of Cedar Falls 
 

 Under the CLG Agreement with the State, local governments and their 
historic preservation commissions are responsible for submitting an annual 
report documenting the commission’s preservation work and that they have 
met the requirements of the CLG program. 

 This annual report is also an important tool for your commission to evaluate 
its own performance and to plan for the coming year. 

 
Name of the city, county or land use district: 
Cedar Falls Historic Preservation Commission 
 
Did your commission undertake any projects for historic identification/survey, 
evaluation and or registration/nomination projects in this calendar year? 

CLG Standards are in your local government's Certified Local Government (CLG) 
Agreement and the National Historic Preservation Act: 
1) The CLG shall maintain a system for the survey and inventory of historic and 
prehistoric properties in a manner consistent with and approved by the STATE. 
2) The CLG will review National Register nominations on any property that lies in the 
jurisdiction of its historic preservation commission. Please upload any Iowa Site 
Inventory Forms or other survey materials produced during the year. Please do not 
upload any projects that were funded with a CLG or HRDP grant, mandated by the 

[For SHPO use only] 
 
Received ______________________________ 
 
Minimum no. of meetings?               yes       no 
Required training?                               yes       no 
Fully appointed commission?                 yes       no 
Has the commission been active?         yes       no 
Has the commission accomplished  
at least one project?  yes       no 
Comments: 
____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________ 
 
Approved/CLG in good standing      yes    no 
 
More information requested _________________________ 
_________________________________________________ 

 
Entered into database _________/___________ 

24

ITEM 11.



CLG Annual Report 2019 2 

Section 106 review and compliance process, or National Register nominations as we 
already have these documents in our files. 
The Historic Preservation Commission was awarded a CLG grant to hire a consultant to 
prepare a nomination of the Wild Historic District to the National Register of Historic 
Places in 2018. The proposed Wild Historic District is comprised of 423, 501, and 509 W 
1st Street. These three homes were determined by an IDOT Environmental Report to be 
eligible to the National Register because of their connection to Daniel and Margaret 
Wild. The Commission worked with the consultant to prepare and present to the public 
the information about the historic significance of the Wild District in Cedar Falls history.  
The City was successful in these efforts and in October 23,2019, the Wild Historic 
District was listed in the National Register of Historic Places.  
 
Were any National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) properties in your City, County, 
or LUD were altered, moved, or demolished in this calendar year? 

No 
 
Does your local government designate local landmarks or local districts? 

IMPORTANT: Most local governments do not have a program for local designation. If 
you have questions about whether you have a local designation program or not, please 
contact Paula Mohr before you complete this section. 

No 
 

In this calendar year, what were the actions to revise, amend, change, or de-list a 
locally designated property? Please provide the name and address of the property(ies) 
and the action. If no action was taken, enter N/A    

N/A 
 
Has your city or county passed other ordinances that directly or indirectly affect 
historic preservation?   
No 
 
Did your city, county, LUD or its historic preservation commission undertake any of 
the following activities in this calendar year? Please think broadly about this question 
and include any activity (small or large) that facilitated historic preservation in your 
community. This is your opportunity to boast about your accomplishments and get 
credit for the great work you do! 

CLG Standards found in CLG Agreement and National Historic Preservation Act: 
1) The CLG will enforce all appropriate state and local ordinances for designating and 
protecting historic properties. 
2) The CLG shall provide for adequate public participation in the local historic 
preservation programs. 

25

ITEM 11.



CLG Annual Report 2019 3 

a. Historic preservation planning. Examples include the development or revision of 
an preservation plan, development of a work plan for your commission, etc. 

b. Provided technical assistance on historic preservation issues or projects. 
Examples include working with individual property owners, business owners, institutions 
to identify appropriate treatments and find appropriate materials, research advice, etc. 

c. Sponsored public educational programming in historic preservation. Examples 
include training sessions offered to the public, walking tours, open houses, lectures, 
Preservation Month activities, etc. 

d. Design guidelines/standards 
 

During this year, the Historic Preservation Commission was able to guide the Wild 
Historic District with the help of consultant to get the district on the National Register of 
Historic Places, one of the biggest achievements this year. The Commission also 
sponsored an educational program for the community of Cedar Falls by making the walk 
through video of Fairview Cemetery, narrated by a history professor at University of 
Iowa and then screening the video partnering with Hearst Center for Arts. In addition, 
Commission members participated in and provided input on the City’s Imagine 
Downtown Vision Plan.  This plan was adopted in November 2019, and one of the goals 
of the plan is to respect the historic character of Downtown Cedar Falls by encouraging 
the re-use of existing historic buildings, and developing zoning strategies for new 
development that respect the historic scale and character of the downtown area.  
 
Are there any particular issues, challenges, and/or successes your preservation 
commission has encountered or accomplished this year?  
The nomination of Wild Historic District in the National Register of Historic Places is the 
biggest achievement this year for the Historic Preservation Commission. Participation in 
the downtown visioning process will help set the stage for future efforts to preserve the 
historic character and culture of the city.  
 
The premier of the Fairview Cemetery Tour was a great way for the commission to 
educate the public about the significant history embodied in the Fairview Cemetery. 
Participants at the screening of the video really appreciated the depth of historical 
information provided by Tom Connors, history professor at UNI, who narrated the film 
and was present at the screening to answer questions. 
 

What partnerships did your commission form or continue with other entities? 
(Examples include local main street office, historical society, library, museum, service 
club, etc.) If none, enter N/A  
We continue to work with the Cedar Falls Historical Society, Community Main Street, 
Cedar Falls Tourism and other City of Cedar Falls departments. 
 

26

ITEM 11.



CLG Annual Report 2019 4 

Did your historic preservation commission receive any grants (other than CLG or 
HRDP) this year? If so, please describe. If none, enter N/A.  
N/A 
 

Does your commission have a website? 
Yes 
 
What is the website address?  
There is a link to the Cedar Falls Historic Preservation Commission on the city’s website 
(www.cedarfalls.com ) under Government, Boards, and Commissions. 
 
Does your commission have a Facebook page? 
No 
 
List dates of public commission meetings held (please note these are meetings 
actually held with a quorum, not just those that were scheduled).  
CLG Standards found in CLG Agreement and National Historic Preservation Act: 
1) The CLG will organize and maintain a historic preservation commission, which must 
meet at least three (3) times per year. 
2) The commission will be composed of community members with a demonstrated 
positive interest in historic preservation, or closely related fields, to the extent available 
in the community. 
3) The commission will comply with Iowa Code Chapter 21 (open meetings) in its 
operations. 
4) Commission members will participate in state-sponsored or state-approved historic 
preservation training activities. 

Meetings (with a quorum) were scheduled on following dates: 

1/09/19, 2/13/19, 4/10/19, 5/09/19, 6/11/19, 7/30/19, 7/11/18, 9/10/19 and 10/08/19. 
These meetings were publicized and open to the public.  

We recommend that the local government provide the commission a budget with a 
minimum of $750 to pay for training and other commission expenses. In this calendar 
year, what was the dollar amount for the historic preservation commission’s annual 
budget? 

The Commission does not have its own budget. Funding and staff support for 
Commission activities and meetings is covered under the City’s Community Services 
Division budget and is well over $750 per year. 

 

Where are your official CLG files located? 

Certified Local Government files must be stored at city hall (for city commissions) or the 
county courthouse (for county commissions). 

27

ITEM 11.



CLG Annual Report 2019 5 

Files are electronically saved in the City’s Planning and Community Services computers 
in a CLG folder dedicated to Historic Preservation activities. Paper copies are also kept 
by the City’s staff liaison to the Commission, Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD) 

Please list the names of the Historic Preservation Commissioners who served during 
this calendar year. 

Julie Etheredge, Jeanine Johnson, Meredith Main, Brian Hayes (Serving since 
03/31/2019), Michael Mahncke (Serving since 03/31/2019), Biff Rocha (Served until 
03/31/2019) and Jeff Schlobohm (Served until 03/31/2019). 

 

Each CLG was asked to provide a work plan last year. Please provide a self-assessment 
of your progress on the initiatives and programs you identified last year. Were you 
able to accomplish much of what you set out to do? If not, what would help you fulfill 
this next year’s work plan?  

We completed the Wild Historic District project with its addition to the National Register 
of Historic Places. The tour of Fairview Cemetery editing was completed and the Historic 
Commission in partnership with the Hearst Center for Arts, we had a premiere for the 
public before being incorporated into Channel 15's programming. (Local Channel). We 
provided input as a key stakeholder group in the Imagine Downtown Vision Plan.  

 

Each commission should develop a work plan for the coming year. This work plan 
should include the project(s), initiatives and programs you plan to begin or complete. 
Also discuss your plan for obtaining historic preservation training in 2020. Please 
attach your work plan to your annual report. 

Please find the attached work plan for year 2020. 

Please complete the Commission Training Table.  

An important requirement of the Certified Local Government program is annual state-

sponsored (such as the Preserve Iowa Summit) or state-approved training undertaken by 

at least one member of the historic preservation commission and/or staff liaison. In this 

table, provide information about the commissioners’ involvement in historic preservation 

training, listing the name of the conference, workshop or meeting (including online 

training opportunities); the sponsoring organization; the location and date when the 

training occurred. Be sure to provide the names of commissioners, staff, and elected 

officials who attended 

Name of Event Sponsor 

Organization 

Location Date Name of 

Attendees 

Preserve Iowa 

Summit 

 Newton June 6-8, 2019 Jeanine 

Johnson 

Preserve Iowa 

Summit 

 Newton June 6-8, 2019 Julie Etheredge 

28

ITEM 11.



CLG Annual Report 2019 6 

 

Who of your commission members, staff, and/or elected officials attended the 
Preserve Iowa Summit? If so, please provide their names. 
Please note this must be completed. If no one attended, enter none. 

Julie Etheredge and Jeanine Johnson attended the Preserve Iowa Summit in 2019. 
 
Signature page 
 
Please find the attached Signature Page. 

 
CLG Personnel Table 
 
A. Please list the names of the Historic Preservation Commissioners who served during 
calendar year 2019: 
Julie Etheredge, Jeanine Johnson, Meridith Main, Brian Hayes (filled opening), Michael 
Mahncke (filled opening), Jeff Schlobohm (stepped down) and Biff Rocha (stepped 
down). 
 
B. CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIAL 2018 (note this is beginning January 2019) 
Name of Mayor, Chairman of Board of Supervisors, or President of LUD Trustees:  
First Name:  Jim 
Last Name: Brown  
Mailing Address:  220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA, 50613 
Phone Number: (319) 268-5118 
Email Address:  Jim.Brown@cedarfalls.com 
 
C. CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIAL 2019 (note this is beginning January 2020) 
Name of Mayor, Chairman of Board of Supervisors, or President of LUD Trustees:  
First Name:  Robert 
Last Name: Green  
Mailing Address:  220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA, 50613 
Phone Number: (319) 268-5118 
Email Address:  Rob.Green@cedarfalls.com 
 
D. STAFF PERSON FOR THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
First Name:  Jaydevsinh (JD) 
Last Name: Atodaria 

Job Title: Planner I  
Mailing Address:  220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
Phone Number: (319) 268-5185 
Email Address: JDA@cedarfalls.com 
 
 

29

ITEM 11.



CLG Annual Report 2019 7 

2019 HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION:  Please note that this is for 2019 
 
Please complete the following and provide information about your new 2019 
commission.   
 
If the commissioner represents a locally designated district, provide the name of the 
district (Representative, Name of Historic District).  Specify the month, day, and year 
that the commissioner's term will end (Term Ends).  If a commission member serves 
as contact with the State Historic Preservation Office for the Commission, please 
circle yes.   Electronic and mailed communication will be sent to the staff person 
for the commission and the contact.  

 
CHAIRPERSON/COMMISSIONER 
First Name Julie 
Last Name: Etheredge 
 
Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 322 W. 
6th St. Cedar Falls IA 50613 
 
Home Phone Number: (319) 269-5710 
Work Phone Number: (319) 233-8419 
 
Email Address: juliee@invisionarch.com 
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A 
 
Term Ends:   Month   3 Day  31  Year2020 (will renew term 2022) 
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 
 

30

ITEM 11.



CLG Annual Report 2019 8 

VICE CHAIRPERSON/COMMISSIONER 
First Name Jeff 
Last Name: Schlobohm 
 
Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 1910 
Grand Blvd. Cedar Falls IA 50613                                                                     
 
Home Phone Number: (319) 610-1663 
Work Phone Number: (319)-226-1784 
 
Email Address: Schlobohmj@cfu.net 
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A  
 
Term Ends:   Month  3 Day  31   Year 2019 (not continuing) 
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 
 
 
VICE CHAIRPERSON/COMMISSIONER 
First Name Jeanine 
Last Name: Johnson 
 
Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 509 
Clay St. Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Home Phone Number: (319) 266-3070 
Cell Phone Number: (319) 610-0554 
 
Email Address: jjohnson@cfu.net 
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A 
 
Term Ends:   Month   3 Day  31  Year 2019 (renewed until 2022) 
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 
 
 
 
 

31

ITEM 11.



CLG Annual Report 2019 9 

COMMISSIONER 
 
First Name Biff 
Last Name: Rocha 
 
Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 4520 
Ashworth Dr., Apt 4, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Home Phone Number: Cell: (937) 750-1688 
Work Phone Number: (319) 266-9863 
 
Email Address: BiffRocha1@aol.com    
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A 
 
Term Ends:   Month   3 Day  31  Year2019 (not continuing)  
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 
 
 
COMMISSIONER 
 
First Name: Meridith 
 
Last Name: Main 
 
Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 2311 
Green Creek Road, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Home Phone Number: (319-240-7971 
Work Phone Number: (319) 277-0213 
 
Email Address: MeridithMain@gmail.com 
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A 
 
Term Ends:   Month   3 Day  31  Year 2020 (moved out of Cedar 
Falls, so resigned from the Commission) 
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 

32

ITEM 11.



CLG Annual Report 2019 10 

 
COMMISSIONER 
 
First Name: Brian  
 
Last Name: Hayes 
 
Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 1826 
Grand Blvd., Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Home Phone Number: (319)-277-4559 
Work Phone Number: (319) 269-2549 
 
Email Address: floors@cfu.net 
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A 
 
Term Ends:   Month   3 Day  31  Year 2022  
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 
 
COMMISSIONER 
 
First Name: Michael  
 
Last Name: Mahncke 
 
Mailing Address (please provide full mailing address including city and zip code): 1228 
Rainbow Drive, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
Home Phone Number: (319)-231-8514 
Work Phone Number: (319) 266-6576 
 
Email Address: bubba316@hotmail.com 
 
Representative, Name of Local Historic District: N/A 
 
Term Ends:   Month   3 Day  31  Year 2022  
 
Please indicate if this person serves as the Contact with the State Historic Preservation 
Office for the Commission.  Circle       Yes                         No 
 

33

ITEM 11.



CLG Annual Report 2019 11 

 

34

ITEM 11.



2-24-20 

Cedar Falls Historic Preservation Commission 
Work Plan 2020 

 
Project Title:  Tour of Cedar Heights 

Project Scope of work: 
 

Research Cedar Heights area focusing on history, creating a driving 
tour of the area, identifying the century homes, exploring the history 
of the areas trolleys and potentially setting up a home tour 

Persons responsible: 
 

Brian Hayes (Lead Commissioner), Jaydevsinh Atodaria (city liaison) 

Timeline: 
 

 Jan – March – talk to residents for oral histories 

 April-June – research list of historically significant homes 

 July-August – put together pamphlet for driving tour 

 September- advertise driving tour 

Expected outcome: 
 

Driving tour of Cedar Heights, possible home tour 

Project Title: Intensive Survey – W 16th Street (Part 1)  

Project Scope of work: 
 

Intensive Survey of the properties around the last 2 blocks of brick 
street in Cedar Falls. 

Persons responsible: 
 

Jaydevsinh Atodaria (grant administration), Commission lead to be 
determined, volunteers and potential partnerships to be determined. 

Timeline:  
 

 May – reach out to neighbors about effort to start gathering 
volunteers and start work on application 

 Summer 2019 (last year the deadline was in August 1) submit 
application for grant 

Expected outcome: 
 

The inventory will prove the potential of a district and used to apply 
for a Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) grant to help fund the 
preservation of the street.  

Project Title: Sawmills of Cedar Falls 

Project Scope of work: 
 

Research of sawmills in Cedar Falls. 

Persons responsible: 
 

Jeanine Johnson (Lead Commissioner), Jaydevsinh Atodaria (city 
liaison)   

Timeline: 
 

 Jan – June – Research sawmills 

 July-August – put together power point presentation 

 November – present power point at public meeting 

Expected outcome: 
 

Power point presentation of sawmills in Cedar Falls 

Project Title: Additional projects to be determined … 

Project Scope of work: 
 

 

Persons responsible: 
 

 

35

ITEM 11.



2-24-20 

Timeline: 
 

 

Expected outcome: 
 

 

 

36

ITEM 11.



 

Certified Local Government Annual Report 

 
Name of Certified Local Government: _______________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 

 
Signature of person who completed this report    Date 
 
 
 
I certify that a representative of the historic preservation commission has attended a public 
meeting and presented the details of this report to the city council (city CLG) or the Board of 
Supervisors (county CLG). 
 
 
Date of public meeting 
 
 
 
Signature of Mayor or Chairman of the Board of Supervisors  Date 
    
 
 
Printed Name of Elected Official  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Please upload this completed form with your annual report on SlideRoom. 

 
Thank you. 

37

ITEM 11.



38

ITEM 11.



39

ITEM 11.



40

ITEM 11.



CEDAR FALLS HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
2019 Annual Summary 

 
The following is intended to summarize the discussions held by the Commission over 
the past year. This summary was compiled from meeting minutes. 
 
January 9, 2019 

 Comments from SHPO were received for CLG Grant for the Wild District 
Nomination. 

 The Commission started working on finding the new buyer for 203-205 
Main Street Building. 

 Commission Chair discussed the new projects coming up on Wells Fargo 
Redevelopment and 422 Main Street to the commission members.  
 

February 13, 2019 

 The Commission reviewed the draft of CLG Annual Report and 
supplemental information’s were noted by the city staff to make 
adjustment to the draft. 

 The Commission discussed potential meeting date to discuss CLG Grant 
for the Wild District Nomination 

 The City staff informed the commission that the city is currently looking for 
two new commission members to replace the two old commission 
members. 

 
March 2019 
No meeting. 
 
April 10, 2019 

 The Commission members were really happy with the final draft of the 
nomination for CLG Grant for the Wild District Nomination.  

 City Council approved the nomination and the National Register 
Nomination Evaluation Report form was signed by the Chair of the Historic 
Preservation Commission.  

 Commission expressed interest in the nomination of Ice House for 
“Preservation at its Best” Nomination. 
 

May 9, 2019 

 Nomination application for Ice House was not completed in time so the 
nomination will be considered again next year. 

 Mayor made a proclamation for Preservation Month at City Council 
Meeting. 

 Commission agreed to take up a new CLG project and do a larger project 
for Adam’s Family. 

 Nomination for Wild Historic District was submitted to SHPO and will be 
considered by the State Nomination Review Committee. 

41

ITEM 11.



 The commission agreed to attend the Stakeholders meeting for the 
Downtown Vision Plan to meet the consultants and give feedbacks. 

 
June 11, 2019  

 The Commission discussed about cemeteries around the City. 

 Nomination for Wild Historic District was submitted to SHPO and will be 
considered by the State Nomination Review Committee. Few Committee 
members plan to attend the review meeting. 

 
July 09, 2019 

 Few Commission members discussed their experience about the State 
Nomination Review Committee meeting. 

 The commission and the city staff agreed to work for a potential grant 
application for Survey Study for Overman Park area. 

 
July 30, 2019 

 Julie Etheredge was unanimously approved as the Chair of the 
Commission. Meridith Main was unanimously approved as the Vice Chair 
of the Commission. 

 City staff informed the commission that the Fairview Cemetery Tour video 
was in the final editing stage. 

 City staff discussed potential budget for the survey study for Overman 
Park area. 

 The Commission agreed to follow up on the next education project of 
Touring Cedar Heights. The commission agreed to put up a pamphlet for 
the area focusing on History and creating a driving tour of the area. 
Commission was also interested to conduct interviews with Citizens that 
are connected to Neighborhood’s past. 

 Commission volunteered to research information on Saw Mills in Cedar 
falls as a second project. 

 
August 2019 
No meeting. 
 
September 10, 2019 

 Commission reviewed the draft of the Fairview Cemetery Tour Video, the 
commission really appreciated the work. 

 City staff informed the commission that during a research work for the 
potential study survey for Overman Park area, staff did find similar 
research projects already completed. 
 

October 08, 2019 

 Potential presentation dates for the presentation of Fairview Cemetery Tour 
Video was finalized. The Hearst Center as location for presentation was 
discussed. 

 Potential new projects were discussed by the Committee.  

42

ITEM 11.



 
November 12, 2019  
No meeting was scheduled because of historic preservation commission was scheduled 
by the committee. The event was about Fairview Cemetery Video screening. 
 
December 2019 
No meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair: Julie Etheredge  
Vice Chair: Jeff Schlobohm (Until April 2019) and Meredith Main 
 

 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2019 THROUGH DECEMBER 2019 

 

J
a

n
. 

2
0

1
9
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

1
9
 

M
a

r.
 2

0
1

9
 

A
p

r.
 2

0
1

9
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

9
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
9
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

9
 

J
u

ly
. 
2

0
1

9
 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

1
9
 

S
e

p
t.

 2
0
1

9
 

O
c

t.
 2

0
1

9
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

1
9
 

D
e
c

. 
2

0
1

9
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a
ti

o
 

%
 A

tt
e

n
d

. 

Jeff Schlobohm X X 

N
o
 M

e
e
ti
n

g
 

X     

N
o
 M

e
e
ti
n

g
 

   

N
o
 M

e
e
ti
n

g
 

3/3 100% 

Biff Rocha X O X        2/3 66% 

Julie Etheredge X X X X X X O X X X 9/10 90% 

Michael 
Mahncke  

    X X X X X X 6/6 100% 

Brian Hayes     X X X O X X 5/6 83% 

Jeanine 
Johnson 

X X X X X X X X X X 10/10 100% 

Meridith Main  X X X X X O X X X O 8/10 80% 

X =  Present 
O =  Not Present  

43

ITEM 11.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

   

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Planner I 

 DATE: February 26, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Residence Inn Site Plan Review 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Site plan approval for construction of a new hotel. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Hawkeye Hotels (owner); VJ Engineering (engineer); Paradigm Architects 
(architect) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

7200 Nordic Drive 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant proposes to construct a new 21,530 square foot Residence Inn hotel, a 
premium extended stay under the Marriott flagship on 7200 Nordic Drive. The proposal 
includes construction of a new five-story, 119 room hotel on the east side of Nordic 
Drive. The proposed layout of the hotel sits on about 2.65 acres of land with the front of 
the hotel facing Nordic Drive and the back facing Highway 58. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed site 

for development 

44

ITEM 12.



BACKGROUND 
This parcel was rezoned from A-1 Agricultural District to HWY-1 Highway Commercial 
District on June 8, 2003. In addition, the property is in the HCG, Highway Corridor and 
Greenbelt Overlay District and the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay District. 
When there are multiple zoning districts that apply to a property, all the standards and 
requirements apply. If there are any conflicts between the standards in the districts, the 
most restrictive or more specific requirements apply. In this case, Highway 20 
Commercial Corridor Overlay District is the more restrictive one, for the very reason all 
the stated conditions in the overlay zone will be applicable in addition to the base zone 
of HWY-1 Commercial district.  
 
ANALYSIS 
The HWY-1 District is intended to promote general services commercial uses that serve 
a broader market area (i.e. City-wide or regional customer base). The ordinance 
requires a detailed site plan review prior to approval in order to ensure that the 
development site satisfies a number of basic aesthetic standards. Attention to details 
such as parking, open green space, landscaping, signage, building design and other 
similar factors help to ensure orderly development in the entire area.  
 
The intent of the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay District provides enhanced 
development guidelines for commercial uses established in the roadway corridor. The 
overlay district regulations encourage high quality commercial development at key entry 
points into the city that will incorporate adequate open green space areas, on site 
landscaping, high quality building architectural design and adequate visual screening of 
outdoor storage or display areas. The regulations in this overlay district apply in addition 
to the underlying zoning district regulations.  
 
Following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements for the proposed 
development: 
 

1) Use: A hotel is a permitted use both in the HWY-1 District and Highway 20 
Commercial Corridor Overlay District. The overlay district suggests that buildings 
should be designed to enhance the character of this major entryway into the city. 
Use is allowed. 
 

2) Building Location: 20-ft. setbacks are required along the edge of the district and 
along any internal streets/principal access ways. The overlay district also requires 
a 20 ft. setback established around the perimeter of the zoning district. These 
areas must be landscaped. Open space and landscaping is shown on the 
separate landscape plan attached with the documents. In addition, no structure, 
sign or parking areas are allowed in the minimum required setback area. The 
proposed hotel site plan shows 20 ft. setback on the north, east and west sides of 
the property. The site plan shows two access points to the proposed hotel 
buildings from Nordic Drive. Building setbacks are satisfied. 
 

45

ITEM 12.



3) Parking: The new hotel is required to provide 125 parking stalls plus one stall for 
every two employees, and this is derived based on the number of rooms, meeting 
space, restaurant space and employees. The site plan provided shows 130 
parking stalls, which includes 5 ADA stalls. The parking is provided around the 
periphery of the lot.  
North Side: The parking stall dimensions are 9’ x 19’ with a 24’ wide aisle. 
East Side: The parking stall dimensions are 9’ x 19’ stall with a 22’ wide aisle.  
South Side: The parking stall dimensions are 9’ x 17.3’ angled stall at 30 degrees 
with an 18’ wide aisle. 
West Side: The parking stall dimensions are 9’ x 19’ stall with 26’ wide aisles. 
The amount and dimension of the parking stalls and drives are met. 

 

4) Open Green Space: This property is located within the Highway 20 Commercial 
Corridor Overlay Zoning District. This overlay district requires that open green 
space/landscape area be provided at the rate of 15% of the development site. 
Following is a summary from the landscape plan that details how this provision is 
met.   
 
 
 

New Hotel Development Site 115,232 SF  

Required Open/Green Space 17,284 SF 15% 
Provided Open/Green Space 35,021 SF 30% 

 
Landscaping is shown throughout the site, both around the building as well as 
within the parking lot, along the streets and required setbacks. 
 
The open green space exceeds the minimum requirement and is well 
distributed. 

 
5) Landscaping: The Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay Zoning District 

requires landscaping at the rate of 0.02 points per sq. ft. of total development site 
area. Following are the requirements for the new hotel site and what is proposed. 
 

 
Description Required Proposed 

New Hotel Lot 
115,232 * .02 

2,305 pts. 2,835 pts. 

Parking lot trees 
130/15 = 9 trees @ 80 pts. 

720 pts. 1,040 pts. 

Street Tree Planting 
(.75 points per linear foot → 678’ on Nordic 
Drive and Highway 58) 

509 pts. 560 pts. 

Screening 
(1 point per linear foot → 550’ on Nordic 
Drive and Highway 58) 

 

550 pts. 1,440 pts. 

 4,083 pts 5,875 pts 
 

46

ITEM 12.



As detailed in the table, trees are required in the vehicular use area at the rate of 
one tree per 15 parking spaces. This is in addition to the open space and 
landscaping requirements. 13 trees are provided to meet this requirement on the 
proposed new hotel site. 
 
In addition to parking lot trees, there are trees located along the street frontages, 
with shrubs and additional trees being located around each of the buildings. 
Landscaping requirements are met. 
 

 

6) Building Design: The HWY-20 Overlay District requires a design review of various 
elements because the intent of the overlay zone is to have high quality 
commercial properties along the corridor as the corridor serves as one of the main 
entry points to Cedar Falls. These are noted below with a review on how each 
element is addressed. Overall, staff finds that the proposed building design 
meets the zoning standards based on the following analysis.  

 

Proportion: The relationship between the width and height of the front elevations of 

adjacent buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building; the 
relationship of width to height of windows and doors of adjacent buildings shall be 
considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 

 
The scale and proportion of the new hotel will be slightly more than the existing 
hotel sitting on a lot to the south side of proposed development. The hotel on the 
south side of proposed development is about three stories tall and if considering 
the overall height of built structure with the pitch roof, it appears to be about four 
stories tall. On the other end, there is a four story hotel west of the proposed 
development, which sits about 20 ft. higher than the proposed development site 
level and if the overall height of the built structure with pitch roof is considered, it 
appears to be five stories tall. The proposed new hotel development will be five 
stories tall. Staff finds that the proposal is consistent with other development 
in the general area and with the height allowances in the zoning district.  
 
Roof shape, pitch, and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, pitch, and 

direction of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. 

 
Most of the industrial uses located to the west and north utilize flat roofs and are 
about three stories tall. The new hotel will utilize a flat roof with several sloping 
features at the ends of the building and in the main entrance area of the building. 
Whereas, the two existing hotel buildings to the south and west of proposed 
development have sloping roofs that cover the entire building, which add height to 
these buildings. The proposed new hotel’s flat roof style and certain single side 
sloping roof on the ends of hotel and over common areas in the entrance of hotel 
building provides a more contemporary look to the hotel. This distinctive character 
of roofing in the proposed development will provide a unique identity to the 
corridor. Also such unique features do align with the intent of the Highway 20 

47

ITEM 12.



Commercial Corridor Overlay District by creating a unique architectural style. This 
proposed roof shape, pitch and direction creates a nice balance of pitched roof 
and flat terraces style used in the surrounding buildings on the west and north 
sides of the proposed development site.  
 
Pattern: Alternating solids and openings (wall to windows and doors) in the front facade 

and sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. This pattern of 
solids and openings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building.  

 
The new hotel will feature alternating panels of two contrasting 
colors   of Exposure Cement Fiber Lap Siding on the main hotel 
building and a portion of fiber cement wall panels will be added 
in the entrance of the building to make it more attractive. The 
Exposure cement fiber lap siding will be used in varying sizes 
on alternating facades to develop a rhythmic profile of the 
building. These patterns will eliminate a plain façade. All of 
these materials are used in slightly different designs on all sides 
of the building. The pattern is designed in a manner that would 
enhance the building along the gateway corridor to the city. 
These patterns will also be distinguished as far as other 
neighboring developments are concerned, thus aligning to the 
goal of the Highway 20 Commercial Corridor Overlay district. 
 
Materials and texture: The predominant external building materials of all 

structures shall be of masonry/stone/brick or similar material. Concrete 
materials shall be minimal. Stucco materials and/or E.I.F.S. materials are 
also acceptable if complemented with masonry materials. Glass materials 
including large window and doorway areas are encouraged. The prime 
"public view" wall faces of the structure (at least two wall faces), 
comprising at least 90 percent of said wall areas, must be made up of at 
least one or more of these specified preferred building materials. Sheet 
metal or steel sheeting wall materials are to be discouraged unless this is 
a minor component of the wall surface area of no more than one wall face 
of the building. Interior metal, steel or concrete structural building 
components are permitted. 
 
Stone, Fiber Cement and glass are the exterior materials proposed 
for the new hotel. Most of the fiber cement materials and stone will 
have a rough texture. In total, approximately 15% of the building will 
be made up of glass, 70% fiber cement, and 15% stone. 
 
The buildings in the surrounding area are constructed using a wide 
variety of materials, as you have the industrial uses to the north and 
west that primarily utilize metal siding, with commercial/hotel/office 
uses to the west and south which utilize primarily brick and EIFS. 
Staff finds the proposed building materials will enhance the building 
and will create a distinctive look. 
 

48

ITEM 12.



Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and 

roofs of buildings in the area shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. 

 
The new hotel building will primarily include two different shades of 
tan and teal blue in the fiber cement materials with varying size 
panels in the alternating facade. There is another shade of brick red 
in fiber cement materials which will be applied in minimal part of the 
building to enhance the entrance and main areas of hotel. 
 
Architectural features: Architectural features, including but not limited to, 

cornices, entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, and fanlights, prevailing in 
the immediate area, shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building. It is not intended that the details of existing buildings be duplicated 
precisely, but those features should be regarded as suggestive of the 
extent, nature, and scale of details that would be appropriate on new 
buildings or alterations. 

 
Architectural features of the new hotel building includes the one way 
sloping roofs on the ends of the main building and varying heights of 
the one way sloping roof in the entrance part of the hotel building. 
The one way sloping roofs are projecting the fascia boards creating a 
distinctive roof line for the entire building. These roof lines create a 
good balance between the flat roofs and pitched roofs used in the 
development of neighboring properties. There is also a unique light 
element designed for the hotel that will be located on west side 
façade of the hotel. Alternating projections in the floor plan will create 
several niches and will break the façade in rhythmic manner. Overall, 
the architectural style is more contemporary in nature and will help in 
developing a unique identity of the building. 
  

 
 
 

49

ITEM 12.



7) Trash Dumpster Site: The dumpster enclosure for the new hotel is located at the 
northeast corner of the parking lot. This enclosure will be made of metal framing 
and cladded with vertical wood slats and cedar cap. The enclosure will have two 
doors to operate towards the parking aisle. The enclosure will measure 14 feet by 
14 feet in size and 8 feet in height. Dumpster enclosure satisfied.  

 
8) Lighting: The HWY-1 District regulations do not have 

specific lighting design guidelines. The site plan 
shows the location of light poles throughout the site. 
The parking lot lights will include a standard light pole 
similar to OSQ Series LED Area/Flood Luminaire 
lights with a backlight shield. The lights will be 
downcast and will be made of aluminum powder 
coated with black color. Lighting is acceptable.  

LED Parking Lot Fixture    
 
9) Signage: For the new hotel, two monument signs are illustrated on the site plan; at 

the entrance along Nordic Drive to the west of the building. These signs measure 
5’ tall by 7.3’ wide. The monument signs will be made of aluminum angle frame 
with shoe box style faces. The monument sign will be illuminated by GE White 
LED’s.  The base of the monument sign will be made of aluminum angles and will 
be brushed with aluminum satin finished. The exterior face will be 425 C Gray 
satin finished.  The letters on the monument sign will appear white during the day 
and will illuminate white at night. The proposed design of the monument base is 
darker so that the sign is visible from a distance and is clear. Please refer to the 
images below for more reference about the monument signs.  

50

ITEM 12.



In addition, there are two wall signs, one facing the east and other facing the west. 
Channel letters will be used for the Wall Signs. Letters will be made with 
aluminum backs. Letters will appear Pantone 425 C gray during the daytime and 
will illuminate white at night. GE White LED’s will be used for illumination of 
letters. Please refer to the images below for more reference about the wall signs. 
The proposed wall signs appear to be well within the District limitations of no 
larger than 20% of the wall area to which the wall sign is attached. However, this 
will be reviewed in detail at the time a sign permit is requested.  
Signage is acceptable, subject to detailed review with a sign permit. 

 

 
10) Sidewalks: There is a 6-foot-wide PCC sidewalk proposed in the site plan to allow 

for patrons to get to the entrances of the buildings from the Nordic Drive. In 
addition to it, there is a plan to add a six foot PCC sidewalk on north side of hotel 
building, a 5 foot PCC sidewalk on the east side of the hotel and a 4 foot PCC 
sidewalk on the south side of the hotel to provide easy pedestrian access to the 
building. These sidewalks would also serve any interior movement for occupants 
within the site. Sidewalks are indicated on the site plan submitted. The sidewalks 
proposed provide good pedestrian circulation and meet City standards. 

 
11) Storm Water Management: The storm water management plan has been 

submitted by the applicant. The plan indicates that several storm water intake 
points are located in the periphery of building footprint to capture the water from 
the impervious surfaces. The site plan also shows a new underground storm 
sewer chamber being proposed at the southwest corner of the property. The 
chamber will capture water from the proposed development site and the parking 

51

ITEM 12.



area around the hotel building. This chamber will be designed in order to release 
the water collected from impervious surfaces into the storm sewer along Nordic 
Drive. The Storm sewer chamber will function similar to the one installed for the 
Hampton Inn hotel in downtown. The Stormwater management plan has been 
reviewed and approved by the Engineering Department. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
 

Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available to the site in 
accordance with the service policies of Cedar Falls Utilities. The property 
owner/contractor is responsible to extend all utility services to the building. These utility 
extensions will be reviewed by CFU personnel as part of the building plan review. 
 
The comments from Cedar Falls Utilities, Engineering, Building, Fire and Planning 
Departments from the Technical Review Meetings on December 18, 2019 were sent to 
the applicant. Staff anticipates that any remaining technical issues will be addressed 
prior council meeting. 
 
Two courtesy notices to surrounding property owners were mailed on January 16, 2020 
and February 05, 2020. Another Notice informing about City council meeting was mailed 
to surrounding property owners on February 26, 2020. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
and Vote 
2/12/2020 
 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background information. He 
explained that the proposed site is located at 7200 Nordic Drive. The proposed hotel is 
five stories with 190 rooms on a 2.65 acre lot and is part of Lot 4 and part of Lot 5 of 
Lockard Pines subdivision. The property is also included in more than one overlay district, 
which requires that the zoning for the site plan follows the one with the strictest 
requirements. Mr. Atodaria discussed aspects of the site plan, including the dumpster 
enclosure, sidewalks and parking, as well as setbacks and height for the building. He 
displayed renderings of the proposed building, and discussed, the utility plan, landscape 
plan, building design, lighting and signage and noted that all requirements have been 
met. Staff recommends approval with any comments or direction by the Commission. 
Ms. Howard noted that this item was on the agenda of the previous Commission meeting 
which was cancelled due to inclement weather and stated that unless there are additional 
issues that the Commission would like addressed, staff would ask that the Commission  
make a recommendation to City Council at this time.  
 
The applicant, Om Patel, Coralville, Iowa, provided a brief overview of the project 
explaining that this would be an extended stay hotel within the Marriot family, catering to 
the three to five business day corporate travelers. The hotel has full suites that include 
kitchenette units.  
 
Ms. Adkins stated that she feels it’s a great project; extended stay hotel is needed in this 
area. Ms. Adkins made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Adkins, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, 
Lynch, Saul and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
 

52

ITEM 12.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Community and Development department has reviewed this site plan and would 
recommend approval, subject to the following conditions: 
  

1. Conform to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 
 
  

 
Attachments: Proposed Site Plan 
  Proposed Utility Plan 
  Proposed Landscaping Plan 
  Proposed Building Elevations 
  Proposed Site details  
   
 

53

ITEM 12.



54

ITEM 12.



55

ITEM 12.



56

ITEM 12.



57

ITEM 12.



58

ITEM 12.



59

ITEM 12.



 
 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: February 26, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment 
  Rules of Procedure Amendment 
  
Please find attached the Rules of Procedure for the Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment. The 
Board is governed by the provisions of Chapter 26, of the Cedar Falls Zoning Ordinance.  
 
The Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment has recommended a change to the Rules of 
Procedure governing said Board. One amendment is to move the date of their regular 
meeting from the fourth Monday of the month to the third Tuesday of the month. The 
reason for this change is to move the meetings into the City Council Chambers for a 
more formal setting. The third Tuesday will not conflict with other regularly scheduled 
meetings. Other changes in the Rules of Procedure include striking out the need to 
appoint a Board of Adjustment committee, requiring the Board Chair to vote on a given 
appeal, posting the Board’s decision on the City’s website and other minor wordsmithing 
details. The Board has agreed to these changes and it applies only to the Board of 
Adjustment Rules of Procedure. This does not involve an Ordinance change but only 
approval by a City Council Resolution. These amendments were approved by the Board 
of Adjustment on February 24, 2020.  
 
Therefore, the Planning and Community Services Department recommends that the City 
Council approve the attached Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment Rules of Procedure in the 
form of a resolution and authorize the Mayor to sign said rules. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at this office. 
 
xc: Karen Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager 

 

60

ITEM 13.



1 

March 2020May 2019 

 

CEDAR FALLS BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

Article I General Governing Rules 

 

 The Board of Adjustment (hereinafter referred to as the Board) shall be governed by the 

provisions of Chapter 414 of the Code of Iowa, Chapter 26, Cedar Falls Code, being the Zoning 

Ordinance of the city, and the rules of procedures set forth herein, as adopted by the Board and 

approved by the City Council. No rule herein shall be changed or waived without the affirmative 

vote of four members of the seven-member Board and the concurrence of the City Council. 

 

Article II Officers, Committees 

 

1. The Board shall elect a chairperson and vice-chairperson annually in the month of 

January or the next regularly scheduled meeting. The vice-chairperson shall be acting 

chairperson in the absence of the chairperson. The chairperson may succeed himself 

or herself only twice. 

 

2. The chairperson (or in his or her absence the vice-chairperson) shall preside at all 

meetings and hearings of the Board and decide all points of order and procedure. In 

the event that the Chair and Vice Chair are absent from the meeting, the remaining 

Board members shall nominate an acting Chair to preside at that meeting. The 

chairperson shall appoint any committees which may be found necessary, including a 

committee for preliminary review of appeals. Special Committees may be formed if 

and when the Chairperson and a majority of the Board deem such Committees 

necessary. 

 

3. A secretary (who need not be a member of the Board) shall be designated by the 

Board. The secretary shall conduct all correspondence of the Board; keep a minute 

book recording attendance, the vote of each member upon each question, or if absent 

or failing to vote, indicating such fact; and records or examinations and hearings and 

other official actions; and shall fulfill such other official duties as may be assigned by 

the Board. 

 

Article III Meetings 

 

1. THE REGULAR MEETING of the Board shall be held the third fourth Tuesday 

Monday of the month at 7:00 p.m., unless meeting needs to be rescheduled due to 

weather or other unforeseen circumstances, as determined by the City. unless the 

fourth Monday happens to fall on a scheduled holiday in which case the regular 

meeting for that month will be conducted on the third Monday at 7:00 p.m. If there is 

no business scheduled for a regular meeting the secretary shall inform the chairperson 

who shall determine whether or not a meeting shall be held. The secretary shall 

61

ITEM 13.



2 

inform the members of the Board at least 24 hours in advance whether or not a 

meeting is scheduled. 

 

2. SPECIAL MEETINGS may be called by the chairperson provided that at least 24 

hours notice of such meeting is given each member and to the general public. 

 

3. A QUORUM shall consist of four members of the Board for the transaction of all 

business including decisions to allow variances and special exceptions. 

 

4. REPRESENTATION, PERSONAL INTEREST. Neither the secretary nor any 

member of the Board shall appear for or represent any person or entity in any matter 

pending before the Board. No member of the Board shall hear, discuss, or vote upon 

an appealapplication for a variance, special exception or appeal in which he or she is 

directly interested in a personal or financial way. Board members shall make every 

effort to reduce or eliminate toany appearance of a conflict of interest before entering 

into discussion or voting upon a particular appealrequest. 

 

5. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS. All meetings shall be open to the public. The 

chairperson, or in his or her absence, the vice-chairperson, may administer oaths or 

compel the attendance of witnessesshall preside over the meeting. The order of 

business at meetings shall be as follows: (a) roll call; (b) review of minutes of 

previous meetings; (c) reports of committees; (d) unfinished business; (ed) hearing of 

cases; (fe) new business; (gf) adjourn. 

 

6. ADJOURNED MEETINGS. The Board may adjourn a regular meeting if all business 

cannot be disposed of on that day. However, the Board shall give public notice of the 

resumption of said meeting at least 24 hours before said meeting is reconvened. 

 

Article IV Vacancies 

 

 Failure to attend three regular consecutive meeting, or five scheduled meetings within 

one year (except in case of sickness or temporary absence from the City with due explanation), 

shall be considered automatic resignation from the Board, and upon such resignation by other 

means, or other vacancies occurring in office, the chairperson shall inform the Mayor and the 

City Council as promptly as possible, so that the City Council may appoint a replacement to fill 

out the unexpired term. 

 

Article V Appeals and Applications: Notice of Hearings; Amendments of 

AppealsApplications 

 

1. Appeals to the Board may be taken by the person affected by any zoning decision of 

the Zoning Administrator within a reasonable time after the decision involved. 

 

1.2.The appealApplications for variances, special exceptions, and appeals shall be filed 

with the Zoning Administrator in a form established by the Board of Adjustment, and 

62

ITEM 13.



3 

all pertinent information required thereon shall be furnished with payment of an 

appeal fee as determined by the Board and City Council before the appealapplication 

is considered filed. 

 

2.3.The secretary shall as promptly as possible inform any appointed committee for 

preliminary review concerning the appeal, and the committee may either discuss the 

matter with the applicant if the applicant desires or proceed directly to order public 

notice and hearing. If the appeal is withdrawn before the public hearing is conducted 

the appeal fee minus any public notice costs shall be returned to the applicant. 

 

If the applicant elects to withdraw the appealapplication at this or any other stage 

before final determination by the Board, this fact shall be noted on the application, 

with the signature of the applicant attesting withdrawal. The original and one copy 

shall be retained by the secretary for the files of the Board and one copy shall be 

returned to the applicant. 

 

If the appeal is not withdrawn, the committee for preliminary review, if established, 

may request the applicant to provide such additional information, not furnished on the 

form, as may be needed to determine the particular case (which information shall be 

provided by the applicant before decision is made by the Board) and shall instruct the 

secretary to proceed with public notice of a hearing on the case. 

 

4. The public notice shall be published once, not less than seven (7) nor more than 

fourteen (14) days before the date of hearing, in a newspaper having general 

circulation in the city. 

 

3.5.In addition,On an appeal of an administrative decision, the appealing party shall 

submit to the secretary of the Board ten calendar days prior to the hearing a petition 

signed by adjacent property owners as set out by the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, 

Section 26-62. The notice shall state the name of the appellant, the location of the 

property, the action requested, and the time and place of the hearing. 

 

4.6.Amendment of an appealapplication by the applicant may be permitted at any time 

prior to or during the public hearing, provided that no such amendment shall be such 

as to make the case substantially different from its description in the notice of public 

hearing. Substantially different shall mean a change whereby the appealapplication 

request is increased so that the appealrequest, if approved, would result in a greater 

impact upon neighboring properties. If an amendment is requested by the applicant 

after public notice of the hearing has been given, and such amendment is substantially 

different from the information set forth in the public notice, the applicant shall pay an 

additional fee to cover the amended public notice as determined by the Board and 

City Council. Said amended notice shall be published one time only. If the amended 

notice can be published five calendar days prior to the hearing originally scheduled, 

the hearing on the amended appealapplication may be held on that date, otherwise the 

chairperson shall announce that the hearing originally scheduled on the case will be 

63

ITEM 13.



4 

deferred to a future meeting, before which appropriate public notice will be given, 

and will state the reasons for deferral. 

 

Article VI Hearing 

 

1. An appealapplication for variance, special exception, or appeal shall be heard at the 

next regular meeting of the Board unless the appealapplication is withdrawn. Appeals 

may be heard in order of receipt of applications or as determined by the Board. 

 

2. At the public hearing, the applicant or any other party may appear on his or her own 

behalf or be represented by an agent or by an attorney. 

 

3. Order of the hearing shall be: 

 

a. Statement of case by city staff. 

 

b. Supporting argument by applicant or the applicant’s agent or attorney. 

 

c. Supporting arguments by others at the hearing. 

 

d. Opposing arguments by persons at the hearing. 

 

e. Rebuttal by those supporting appealthe application (other than applicant). 

 

f. Rebuttal by those opposed to appealthe application. 

 

g. Final rebuttal by applicant. 

 

Witnesses may be called and factual evidence and exhibits submitted. 

 

The chairperson may establish appropriate time limits for arguments, but such time 

limits shall be equal for both sides. The chairperson may request representatives of 

each side to speak for the entire group or portion of the group, but shall not require 

such representation against the wishes of the group involved. 

 

Article VII Decisions 

 

 Final decisions by the Board on an appeal shall be made no later than 14 daysthe 

conclusion of the next scheduled meeting following the public hearing at which it was 

considered. The decision shall be in the form of a resolution, signed by a Board officer and will 

be posted on the City’s website. Any resolution reversing an order, requirement, decision, or 

determination of the Zoning Administrator or deciding in favor of the applicant on any special 

exception or variance, shall require the concurring vote of four (4) members of the Board. 

Failure to pass such resolution with the concurring vote of four (4) members of the Board shall 

constitute automatic denial of the appealrequested variance, special exception, or appeal. 

64

ITEM 13.



5 

 

  The chairperson may, but is not obligated to, vote on any given appeal. The chairperson 

may vote in the case of a tie or otherwise where a vote of the chair will influence the outcome of 

the decision. The chairperson shall vote, however, in those situations where the chair presides 

over a meeting where a total of four Board members are present including the chairperson. 

 

 The resolution shall showlist the reasons for the determination made,Board’s findings of 

fact and conclusions based on the findings of fact on which the decision was made, and if in 

favor of the applicant, shall set forth any conditions or safeguards required, or any time 

limitations prescribed. 

 

 Notation concerning the decision shall be made on the original application. The original 

copy of the application, together with the original resolution, shall remain in the files of the 

Board. The applicant shall be notified in writing of the decision of the Board. 

 

Article VIII Appeals/Re-Hearing 

 

 Final decisions by the Board may be appealed by any interested party to a court of record 

as outlined in State Code Section 414.15. Applications for re-hearing of the same application 

before the Board shall be discouraged. Application for re-hearing must be submitted in the 

original manner including full submittal of nonrefundable fee. 

 

 The Board shall not accept an application for re-hearing if the application contains no 

substantial change in facts, evidence or conditions. An application for re-hearing that contains 

substantial change in facts, evidence or conditions can be reviewed by the Board only upon a 

motion and second from the prevailing side at the original hearing. The motion to reconsider the 

application shall be approved by at least four (4) members of the Board. 

 

 

These rules of procedure are adopted by the Board of Adjustment on           day of   

    , 2020 

 

         

      Amy Lang, Chair 

      

     ATTEST:     

      David Sturch, Secretary 

 

Approved by the City Council on  day of     , 2020. 

 

         

      Robert M. Green, Mayor  

   

     ATTEST:     

    Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

65

ITEM 13.



 
 

 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE RULES OF 
PROCEDURE FOR THE CEDAR FALLS BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT ON 

THE REGULAR MEETING TIME, BOARD COMMITTEES, VOTING 
PROCEDURES, AND THE POSTING OF THE BOARDS DECISION 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has received 

a recommendation from the Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment to approve  
amendments to the Rules of Procedure on their meeting time, voting by the 

Board Chair and the posting of the decision by the Board on the City’s website; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment approved said 
amendments to the Rules of Procedure; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in 
the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa to approve the meeting time, 

voting by the Board Chair and the posting of the Board’s decision on the City’s 
website amendments to the Rules of Procedure for the Board of Adjustment. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that the Cedar Falls Board of Adjustment Rules 
of Procedure amendments are hereby approved. 

 
ADOPTED this _______ day of ___________________, 2020. 

 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 

         
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

66

ITEM 13.



 
 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: February 26, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Funding Request 
 Lake Street Trail Project 
 
The Department of Community Development is planning to install new concrete on the 
Lake Street trail from Central Avenue to the Big Woods north parking lot. This concrete 
surface will cover the existing granular surface to create a smooth surface for 
pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
The City intends to submit a request to fund this trail project with Transportation 
Alternatives Program (TAP) funds through the Black Hawk County Metropolitan Area 
Policy Board (MPO). This project qualifies for federal TAP and the attached resolution 
identifies the City’s commitment to this project. This endorsement is part of the 
application process for this trail project. This project is listed in the FY 20-25 Capital 
Improvements Program. 
 
Therefore, we ask that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
authorizing the Mayor to submit an application for Transportation Alternatives Program 
funds for the construction of the Lake Street trail. 
  
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact this office. 

67

ITEM 14.



68

ITEM 14.



69

ITEM 14.



70

ITEM 14.



71

ITEM 14.



72

ITEM 14.



73

ITEM 14.



74

ITEM 14.



75

ITEM 14.



76

ITEM 14.



 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

APPROVING APPLICATION TO THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY METROPOLITAN AREA 

TRANSPORTATION POLICY BOARD FOR IOWA’S TRANSPORTATION 

ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM FUNDING AND DIRECTING EXECUTION OF SAID 

APPLICATION BY THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 

 

WHEREAS, the Lake Street Trail project has been identified as a critical project for the City of 

Cedar Falls; and 

WHEREAS, funding assistance is available through the Black Hawk County Metropolitan Area 

Transportation Policy Board’s Iowa’s Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP), and the City 

of Cedar Falls is in need of such assistance in order to complete this project; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls to avail itself of financial 

assistance through the Iowa’s Transportation Alternatives Program as administered by the Black 

Hawk County MPO; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as follows: 

 

1) The Iowa’s TAP application for the Lake Street Trail project is hereby approved and 

endorsed by the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

2) The improvement provided for in this application will be dedicated to public use and 

adequately maintained by the City of Cedar Falls for a minimum of twenty years. 

 

3) The City of Cedar Falls assures the Black Hawk County Metropolitan Area 

Transportation Policy Board that funds for the match have been or will be committed to 

the Iowa’s TAP project by the fiscal year programmed. 

 

4) The Mayor is hereby designated as the official representative of the City and is further 

hereby directed and authorized to affix their signature to said application. 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of _________, 2020. 

 

              

                                                                             Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

77

ITEM 14.



 
 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: February 26, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Surface Transportation Block Grant Programming Funding Request 
 Main Street Reconstruction 
 
The Department of Community Development is planning the reconstruction of Main 
Street from W. 6th Street to Seerley Boulevard, currently planned in our Capital 
Improvements Plan to kick off in a couple of years.  
 
As we prepare for this future project, staff is considering outside funding sources that 
might be a good fit.  This project qualifies for federal Surface Transportation Block Grant 
funds (STBG). The City intends to submit a request for STBG funds through the Black 
Hawk County Metropolitan Area Policy Board (MPO) for the design and construction of 
this roadway. The attached resolution identifies the City’s commitment to this project. 
This endorsement is part of the application process for this reconstruction project. This 
project is listed in the FY 20-25 Capital Improvements Program. 
 
Therefore, we ask that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
authorizing the Mayor to submit an application for Surface Transportation Block Grant 
funds for the design and construction of Main Street.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact this office. 

78

ITEM 15.



 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

APPROVING APPLICATION TO THE BLACK HAWK COUNTY METROPOLITAN AREA 

TRANSPORTATION POLICY BOARD FOR SURFACE TRANSPORTATION BLOCK 

GRANT PROGRAM FUNDING AND DIRECTING EXECUTION OF SAID APPLICATION 

BY THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 

 

WHEREAS, reconstruction of Main Street has been identified as a critical project for the City of 

Cedar Falls; and 

WHEREAS, the Black Hawk County Metropolitan Area Transportation Policy Board (MPO) 

provides Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Program funds on a competitive basis for 

projects to preserve and improve the conditions and performance on any Federal-aid highway, 

bridge projects on any public road, pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure, and transit capital 

projects; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls to avail itself of financial 

assistance through the Surface Transportation Block Grant Program as administered by the Black 

Hawk County MPO. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as follows: 

 

1) The STBG application for the Main Street reconstruction project is hereby approved and 

endorsed by the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

2) The improvement provided for in this application will be dedicated to public use and 

adequately maintained by the City of Cedar Falls. 

 

3) The City of Cedar Falls assures the Black Hawk County Metropolitan Area 

Transportation Policy Board that funds for the local match have been or will be 

committed to the STBG project by the fiscal year programmed. 

 

4) The Mayor is hereby designated as the official representative of the City and is further 

hereby directed and authorized to affix their signature to said application. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of _________, 2020. 

 

              

                                                                             Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

        

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

79

ITEM 15.



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning and Community Services Manager 

 DATE: March 2, 2020 

 SUBJECT: HOME Rehabilitation Project – Bid Opening 
  827 W. 4th Street – Project #1-20-679 
   
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) funds that support several programs, 
including housing rehabilitation and repair for income-qualifying residents. Cedar Falls 
participates in a HOME Consortium with the City of Waterloo, which is the lead entity 
and administrator of HOME funds for both cities. 
 
In January 2020, bids were let for a rehabilitation project for a home at 827 W. 4th Street 
in Cedar Falls. The City of Waterloo, with the assistance of Cedar Falls staff, has 
determined that the property and its owner meet HOME program requirements. The 
rehabilitation project will improve living conditions for the residents of the home and 
bring the home into code compliance. The project includes repairs and replacement of 
windows, doors, stoop, gutters and downspouts on the exterior of the home; and 
electrical, plumbing, and fire safety improvements on the interior of the home.  
 
On Tuesday, February 18, 2020 at 10:00 AM, bids were received and opened for this 
HOME rehabilitation project. Bid results are shown in the table below. Permit amounts 
have been added to each bid total to show the total contract amount for each bid. 
 

827 W. 4th Street  
Bid Total Hard Costs 

Lead Hazard 
Reduction 
Costs 

Permits 
Total Contract 
Amount, if 
awarded 

Daniels Home 
Improvement – base bid 

$15,150 $11,900 $3,250 $273.00 $15,423.00 

Kirvan Enterprises LLC 
– base bid 

$18,050 $13,350 $4,700 $316.25 $18,366.25 

Daniels Home 
Improvement – with 
alternates 

$18,200 $14,950 $3,250 $316.25 $18,516.25 

Kirvan Enterprises LLC 
– with alternates 

$18,800 $14,100 $4,700 $316.25 $19,116.25 

80

ITEM 16.



 

 

 
 
City staff recommends including two items in the contract award that were listed as 
alternates in the bidding documents: 
 

 Replace bathroom flooring after the tub is removed and a new shower installed 

 Replace the front concrete steps 

 

The Inspector’s cost estimate for the Scope of Work, including permit costs and the two 
alternates listed above, was $16,572.25. With permit costs included, Daniels Home 
Improvement submitted the low bid in the amount of $18,516.25 for 827 W. 4th Street. 
 
The Housing Commission reviewed and approved the proposed scope of this 
rehabilitation project at their December 10th meeting.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
As a result of the competitive bids, the Community Development Department 
recommends acceptance of the low bid and entering into a contract with Daniels Home 
Improvement in the amount of $18,516.25 for 827 W. 4th Street. 
 
Please let me know if you have questions.  
 
 
 
XC: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director 
  
 

81

ITEM 16.



82

ITEM 16.



83

ITEM 16.



84

ITEM 16.



85

ITEM 16.



86

ITEM 16.



87

ITEM 16.



88

ITEM 16.



89

ITEM 16.



90

ITEM 16.



91

ITEM 16.



92

ITEM 16.



93

ITEM 16.



94

ITEM 16.



95

ITEM 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 
 DATE: February 26, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 2020 Sturgis Falls Agreement 
 
 City staff has been working with Jay Stoddard and the Sturgis Falls Board over the last 
few months to update their current agreement with the City. The current agreement was in place 
for five(5) years and expired on February 29, 2020. The Sturgis Falls Board has been agreeable 
to make these changes for a period of one(1) year.  
  
 The changes are intended to address the title changes and reorganization of the City. 
The attached one(1) year agreement outlines the specific areas in the parks that will be used by 
the Sturgis Falls Celebration; these include Island Park, Overman Park, Tourist Park, Gateway 
Park, Police Officer’s Memorial Park, and a portion of Sturgis Park. This agreement will run for 
one(1) year beginning March 3, 2020 and ending March 2, 2021.  
  
 City Staff will be returning at a future committee meeting to discuss how special event 
permits are processed and discuss specific details that will be outlined in a future agreement 
with the Sturgis Falls Celebration. It is anticipated that a longer agreement (5 year agreement) 
will be developed prior to December 30, 2020. 
  
 I have attached the proposed agreement for your review and consideration. The 
Department of Public Works recommends approval of the new agreement between the City and 
Sturgis Falls Celebration for one(1) year. 
 
 
 
xc: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance and Business Operations 

  

96

ITEM 17.



97

ITEM 17.



98

ITEM 17.



99

ITEM 17.



100

ITEM 17.



101

ITEM 17.



102

ITEM 17.



103

ITEM 17.



104

ITEM 17.



105

ITEM 17.



106

ITEM 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, PE, Principal Engineer  
 
 DATE: February 26, 2020  
 
 SUBJECT: University Avenue Reconstruction Phase 3 
  Project No. RC-000-3140 
  Final Out 
 
The University Avenue Reconstruction - Phase 3 project is complete and ready for final 
acceptance. Phase 2 work is not complete and we are in the process of completing all 
paperwork. We are therefore proceeding with Phase 3 closure to not delay final 
payment due to the contractor. The project from Main St to Grove St was a complete 
reconstruction. The project was under contract with Peterson Contractors Inc. of 
Reinbeck, Iowa. Attached you will find the following final documents: 
 

- Final Pay Estimate (releases final retainage) 
- Change Order #4 (reconciliation of quantities) 
- Copy of Maintenance Bond, Peterson Contractors Inc. 

 
The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and are on file with the City Clerk: 
 
Peterson Contractors Inc. Suppliers: 
Arends Excavating LLC 
Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete 
BMC Aggregates LC 
Cedar Valley Trucking LLC 
Coleman Moore Company 
Construction Materials Inc 
Forterra 
Hayes Bros Inc 
Hi-Way Products 
Leymaster Tile LLC 
Triple D Enterprises LLP 
Utility Equipment Co 
 

Peterson Contractors Inc. Subcontractors: 
CGA Consultants 
Aspro Inc 
Cedar Falls Construction Co Inc 
K. Cunningham Co Inc 
  -Construction Materials Inc 
  -Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete 
Des Moines Steel Fence Co Inc 
  -Merchants Metals Inc 
  -Hi-Way Products Inc 
  -Master-Halco Inc 
Meli LLC 
  -Stetson  
  -Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete 
  -Utility Equipment Co 

107

ITEM 18.



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Mike Dolan Concrete & Masonry  
  -Midland Concrete Products 
  -Camenzind Masonry LLC 
  -Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete 
  -Edwards Cast Stone Co 
Quality Striping Inc  
Quality Traffic Control Inc  
Service Signing Inc 
KW Electric Inc 
  -ECHO Group Inc 
  -Manatt’s Inc 
  -Terry Durin Co 
  -Van Meter Co 
  -Xcessories Squared Inc 
Matthias Landscaping Co 
  -Signs & Designs 
  -Gerdes Nursery 

  
 
 
This project was funded with multiple sources including the University Avenue Transfer 
of Jurisdiction, Sewer Revenue Bond, Storm Water Fund, Road Use Tax, Cedar Falls 
Utilities, TIF and Black Hawk County Gaming Grant.  
 
I certify that the public improvements for the 3140 - University Ave Phase 3 
reconstruction project was completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans 
and specifications. 
 

                                         2/20/2020    
                        Jonathan P. Fitch           Date 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, P.E., Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

108

ITEM 18.



109

ITEM 18.



110

ITEM 18.



111

ITEM 18.



112

ITEM 18.



113

ITEM 18.



114

ITEM 18.



115

ITEM 18.



116

ITEM 18.



117

ITEM 18.



118

ITEM 18.



119

ITEM 18.



120

ITEM 18.



121

ITEM 18.



122

ITEM 18.



123

ITEM 18.



124

ITEM 18.



125

ITEM 18.



126

ITEM 18.



127

ITEM 18.



128

ITEM 18.



129

ITEM 18.



130

ITEM 18.



131

ITEM 18.



132

ITEM 18.



133

ITEM 18.



134

ITEM 18.



135

ITEM 18.



136

ITEM 18.



137

ITEM 18.



138

ITEM 18.



139

ITEM 18.



140

ITEM 18.



141

ITEM 18.



142

ITEM 18.



143

ITEM 18.



144

ITEM 18.



145

ITEM 18.



146

ITEM 18.



147

ITEM 18.



148

ITEM 18.



149

ITEM 18.



150

ITEM 18.



151

ITEM 18.



152

ITEM 18.



153

ITEM 18.



154

ITEM 18.



155

ITEM 18.



156

ITEM 18.



157

ITEM 18.



158

ITEM 18.



159

ITEM 18.



160

ITEM 18.



161

ITEM 18.



162

ITEM 18.



163

ITEM 18.



164

ITEM 18.



165

ITEM 18.



166

ITEM 18.



167

ITEM 18.



168

ITEM 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, PE, Principal Engineer  
 
 DATE: February 26th, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 12th Street Reconstruction 
  Project No. RC-059-3196 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Tuesday, February 25th, 2020 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
12th Street Reconstruction Project. A total of five (5) bids were received, with Peterson 
Contractors Inc (PCI) the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $1,153,300.00 

Peterson Contractors Inc $1,019,447.57 

K. Cunningham Construction Inc $1,025,790.92 

Pirc-Tobin Construction Inc $1,168,935.14 

Veith Construction Corp $1,245,701.65 

BWC Excavating, LC $1,531,425.75 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $1,153,300.00. Peterson Contractors Inc. 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $1,019,447.57. Attached is 
a bid tab for your reference. The project will be funded by Local Option Sales Tax, 
Street Construction Fund and Cedar Falls Utilities funding sources.  
 
We recommend acceptance of the lowest bid from Peterson Contractors Inc. in the 
amount of $1,019,447.57. On March 16th, 2020, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance 
Certificate will be submitted for City Council approval. 
  
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer   
  

169

ITEM 19.



TABULATION OF BIDS
12th Street Reconstruction
Project Number: RC-059-3196

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE
1 Clearing and Grubbing UNIT 486 40.00$        19,440.00$           $75.00 $36,450.00 $75.00 $36,450.00 $10.00 $4,860.00 $60.00 $29,160.00 $50.00 $24,300.00 54 $26,250.00
2 Topsoil, On-site CY 517 12.00$        6,204.00$             $25.00 $12,925.00 $25.00 $12,925.00 $15.00 $7,755.00 $33.00 $17,061.00 $50.00 $25,850.00 30 $15,310.00
3 Excavation, Class 10 CY 3569 10.00$        35,690.00$           $9.45 $33,727.05 $9.45 $33,727.05 $10.00 $35,690.00 $14.50 $51,750.50 $25.00 $89,225.00 14 $48,830.00
4 Excavation, Class 12 CY 50 30.00$        1,500.00$             $15.00 $750.00 $15.00 $750.00 $75.00 $3,750.00 $65.00 $3,250.00 $125.00 $6,250.00 59 $2,950.00
5 Excavation, Class 10, Unsuitable or Unstable CY 362.4 15.00$        5,436.00$             $9.45 $3,424.68 $9.45 $3,424.68 $50.00 $18,120.00 $60.00 $21,744.00 $25.00 $9,060.00 31 $11,160.00
6 Subgrade Preparation SY 7247.5 2.00$          14,495.00$           $1.00 $7,247.50 $1.00 $7,247.50 $1.00 $7,247.50 $1.25 $9,059.38 $2.00 $14,495.00 1 $9,060.00
7 Subgrade Treatment, Geogrid, Type 2 SY 362.4 5.00$          1,812.00$             $3.25 $1,177.80 $3.25 $1,177.80 $2.00 $724.80 $2.50 $906.00 $5.00 $1,812.00 3 $1,160.00
8 Subbase, Modified, 12" SY 7247.5 11.00$        79,722.50$           $12.65 $91,680.88 $12.65 $91,680.88 $15.50 $112,336.25 $15.50 $112,336.25 $15.00 $108,712.50 14 $103,350.00
9 Compaction Testing LS 1 2,500.00$   2,500.00$             $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 2650 $2,650.00
10 Trench Compaction Testing LS 1 1,000.00$   1,000.00$             $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $3,250.00 $3,250.00 2600 $2,600.00
11 Storm Sewer, Trenched,  RCP, 15" LF 629 50.00$        31,450.00$           $49.00 $30,821.00 $49.00 $30,821.00 $65.00 $40,885.00 $70.00 $44,030.00 $88.00 $55,352.00 64 $40,390.00
12 Storm Sewer, Trenched,  RCP, 18" LF 155 55.00$        8,525.00$             $51.00 $7,905.00 $51.00 $7,905.00 $68.50 $10,617.50 $92.00 $14,260.00 $80.00 $12,400.00 69 $10,620.00
13 Storm Sewer, Trenched,  RCAP/RCEP, Eq. Dia. 24" LF 104 120.00$      12,480.00$           $76.00 $7,904.00 $76.00 $7,904.00 $90.00 $9,360.00 $130.00 $13,520.00 $155.00 $16,120.00 105 $10,970.00
14 Storm Sewer, Trenched,  PVC, 15" LF 0 65.00$        -$                     $0.00 $0.00 $60.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75.00 $0.00 27 $0.00
15 Removal of Storm Sewer, All Types and Sizes LF 388 20.00$        7,760.00$             $10.00 $3,880.00 $10.00 $3,880.00 $5.50 $2,134.00 $20.00 $7,760.00 $12.00 $4,656.00 12 $4,470.00
16 Subdrain, Type 1, HDPE, 6" LF 2056 11.50$        23,644.00$           $8.00 $16,448.00 $8.00 $16,448.00 $15.00 $30,840.00 $20.00 $41,120.00 $10.00 $20,560.00 12 $25,090.00
17 Subdrain Cleanout, Type A-2, 6" EA 13 500.00$      6,500.00$             $400.00 $5,200.00 $400.00 $5,200.00 $400.00 $5,200.00 $275.00 $3,575.00 $450.00 $5,850.00 385 $5,010.00
18 Subdrain Outlets and Connections, CMP, 6" EA 7 250.00$      1,750.00$             $450.00 $3,150.00 $450.00 $3,150.00 $175.00 $1,225.00 $250.00 $1,750.00 $400.00 $2,800.00 345 $2,420.00
19 Storm Sewer Service Stub, PVC, 4" LF 142 50.00$        7,100.00$             $50.00 $7,100.00 $50.00 $7,100.00 $65.00 $9,230.00 $125.00 $17,750.00 $52.00 $7,384.00 68 $9,720.00
20 Water Main, Trenched,  DIP, 4" (w/ Nitrile Gaskets) LF 12 70.00$        840.00$                $98.00 $1,176.00 $98.00 $1,176.00 $115.00 $1,380.00 $285.00 $3,420.00 $130.00 $1,560.00 145 $1,750.00
21 Water Main, Trenched,  DIP, 6" (w/ Nitrile Gaskets) LF 61 62.50$        3,812.50$             $60.00 $3,660.00 $60.00 $3,660.00 $95.00 $5,795.00 $130.00 $7,930.00 $60.00 $3,660.00 81 $4,950.00
22 Water Main, Trenched,  DIP, 8" (w/ Nitrile Gaskets) LF 356 67.50$        24,030.00$           $56.00 $19,936.00 $56.00 $19,936.00 $75.00 $26,700.00 $79.00 $28,124.00 $75.00 $26,700.00 68 $24,280.00
23 Water Main, Trenched,  DIP, 10" (w/ Nitrile Gaskets) LF 6 75.00$        450.00$                $210.00 $1,260.00 $210.00 $1,260.00 $175.00 $1,050.00 $365.00 $2,190.00 $175.00 $1,050.00 227 $1,370.00
24 Water Main, Trenched,  DIP, 12" (w/ Nitrile Gaskets) LF 310 85.00$        26,350.00$           $78.00 $24,180.00 $78.00 $24,180.00 $100.00 $31,000.00 $105.00 $32,550.00 $105.00 $32,550.00 93 $28,900.00
25 Fitting, DIP, 4" MJ Cap EA 4 150.00$      600.00$                $200.00 $800.00 $200.00 $800.00 $200.00 $800.00 $75.00 $300.00 $350.00 $1,400.00 205 $820.00
26 Fitting, DIP, 6" MJ Cap EA 8 175.00$      1,400.00$             $225.00 $1,800.00 $225.00 $1,800.00 $220.00 $1,760.00 $95.00 $760.00 $375.00 $3,000.00 228 $1,830.00
27 Fitting, DIP, 10" MJ Cap EA 1 200.00$      200.00$                $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $365.00 $365.00 $175.00 $175.00 $575.00 $575.00 343 $350.00
28 Fitting, DIP, 12" MJ Cap EA 4 225.00$      900.00$                $350.00 $1,400.00 $350.00 $1,400.00 $450.00 $1,800.00 $225.00 $900.00 $400.00 $1,600.00 355 $1,420.00
29 Fitting, DIP, 4" MJ 90° Bend EA 3 250.00$      750.00$                $275.00 $825.00 $275.00 $825.00 $375.00 $1,125.00 $200.00 $600.00 $385.00 $1,155.00 302 $910.00
30 Fitting, DIP, 6" MJ 90° Bend EA 1 300.00$      300.00$                $275.00 $275.00 $275.00 $275.00 $425.00 $425.00 $250.00 $250.00 $525.00 $525.00 350 $350.00
31 Fitting, DIP, 10" MJ 90° Bend EA 2 375.00$      750.00$                $475.00 $950.00 $475.00 $950.00 $650.00 $1,300.00 $425.00 $850.00 $625.00 $1,250.00 530 $1,060.00
32 Fitting, DIP, 12" MJ 45° Bend EA 4 400.00$      1,600.00$             $550.00 $2,200.00 $550.00 $2,200.00 $845.00 $3,380.00 $500.00 $2,000.00 $630.00 $2,520.00 615 $2,460.00
33 Fitting, DIP, 2"x1.5" MJ Reducer EA 1 250.00$      250.00$                $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $250.00 $200.00 $200.00 $95.00 $95.00 $1,400.00 $1,400.00 439 $440.00
34 Fitting, DIP, 6"x2" MJ Reducer EA 1 325.00$      325.00$                $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $300.00 $200.00 $200.00 $175.00 $175.00 $750.00 $750.00 345 $350.00
35 Fitting, DIP, 6"x4" MJ Reducer EA 2 350.00$      700.00$                $325.00 $650.00 $325.00 $650.00 $400.00 $800.00 $200.00 $400.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 350 $700.00
36 Fitting, DIP, 10"x8" MJ Reducer EA 1 1,000.00$   1,000.00$             $350.00 $350.00 $350.00 $350.00 $500.00 $500.00 $300.00 $300.00 $600.00 $600.00 420 $420.00
37 Fitting, DIP, 12"x6" MJ Tee EA 3 1,000.00$   3,000.00$             $525.00 $1,575.00 $525.00 $1,575.00 $900.00 $2,700.00 $600.00 $1,800.00 $700.00 $2,100.00 650 $1,950.00
38 Water Service Stub, Copper, 3/4" (Short Side) EA 9 1,500.00$   13,500.00$           $1,500.00 $13,500.00 $1,500.00 $13,500.00 $1,260.00 $11,340.00 $1,150.00 $10,350.00 $1,250.00 $11,250.00 1332 $11,990.00
39 Water Service Stub, Copper, 3/4" (Long Side) EA 12 1,850.00$   22,200.00$           $1,850.00 $22,200.00 $1,850.00 $22,200.00 $1,800.00 $21,600.00 $2,150.00 $25,800.00 $2,250.00 $27,000.00 1980 $23,760.00
40 Water Service Stub, Copper, 1" (Short Side) EA 1 1,600.00$   1,600.00$             $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $1,300.00 $1,300.00 $1,150.00 $1,150.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 1490 $1,490.00
41 Water Service Stub, Copper, 1.5" (Long Side) EA 1 2,500.00$   2,500.00$             $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $2,750.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,850.00 $2,850.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 2770 $2,770.00
42 Valve, Gate, 6" EA 1 1,900.00$   1,900.00$             $1,850.00 $1,850.00 $1,850.00 $1,850.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,850.00 $2,850.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 1760 $1,760.00
43 Valve, Gate, 8" EA 1 2,100.00$   2,100.00$             $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $3,275.00 $3,275.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 2135 $2,140.00
44 Valve, Gate, 12" EA 2 2,500.00$   5,000.00$             $3,350.00 $6,700.00 $3,350.00 $6,700.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $4,250.00 $8,500.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 3190 $6,380.00
45 Tapping Valve Assembly, 12"X6" EA 1 4,000.00$   4,000.00$             $4,350.00 $4,350.00 $4,350.00 $4,350.00 $3,550.00 $3,550.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $5,900.00 $5,900.00 4530 $4,530.00
46 Tapping Valve Assembly, 12"X8" EA 1 4,500.00$   4,500.00$             $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $5,100.00 $5,100.00 $7,250.00 $7,250.00 4670 $4,670.00
47 Fire Hydrant Assembly EA 2 5,000.00$   10,000.00$           $4,600.00 $9,200.00 $4,600.00 $9,200.00 $4,350.00 $8,700.00 $2,750.00 $5,500.00 $4,800.00 $9,600.00 4220 $8,440.00
48 Flushing Device (Blowoff), 10" EA 2 4,000.00$   8,000.00$             $1,700.00 $3,400.00 $1,700.00 $3,400.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $2,850.00 $5,700.00 $2,400.00 $4,800.00 1970 $3,940.00
49 Fire Hydrant Adjustment EA 1 2,500.00$   2,500.00$             $750.00 $750.00 $750.00 $750.00 $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $1,775.00 $1,775.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 1465 $1,470.00
50 Fire Hydrant Assembly Removal EA 1 1,250.00$   1,250.00$             $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $650.00 $650.00 $525.00 $525.00 $800.00 $800.00 795 $800.00
51 Valve Removal EA 1 250.00$      250.00$                $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $350.00 $350.00 $500.00 $500.00 $800.00 $800.00 530 $530.00
52 Air Release Valve EA 1 5,000.00$   5,000.00$             $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 1790 $1,790.00
53 Intake, SW-505 EA 9 5,500.00$   49,500.00$           $5,525.00 $49,725.00 $5,525.00 $49,725.00 $4,350.00 $39,150.00 $4,575.00 $41,175.00 $4,500.00 $40,500.00 4895 $44,060.00
54 Intake, SW-506 EA 2 7,500.00$   15,000.00$           $7,800.00 $15,600.00 $7,800.00 $15,600.00 $6,000.00 $12,000.00 $5,275.00 $10,550.00 $5,675.00 $11,350.00 6510 $13,020.00
55 Manhole Adjustment, Minor EA 3 500.00$      1,500.00$             $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,250.00 $3,750.00 $1,175.00 $3,525.00 $1,750.00 $5,250.00 1235 $3,710.00
56 Manhole Adjustment, Major EA 1 1,000.00$   1,000.00$             $1,400.00 $1,400.00 $1,400.00 $1,400.00 $2,450.00 $2,450.00 $2,875.00 $2,875.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 2225 $2,230.00
57 Remove Intake EA 4 500.00$      2,000.00$             $500.00 $2,000.00 $500.00 $2,000.00 $450.00 $1,800.00 $575.00 $2,300.00 $300.00 $1,200.00 465 $1,860.00
58 Pavement, PCC, 8" SY 6539 48.00$        313,872.00$         $41.60 $272,022.40 $41.60 $272,022.40 $46.50 $304,063.50 $45.50 $297,524.50 $56.00 $366,184.00 46 $302,370.00
59 Removal of Sidewalk SY 370.3 7.50$          2,777.25$             $6.00 $2,221.80 $6.00 $2,221.80 $4.00 $1,481.20 $13.00 $4,813.90 $15.00 $5,554.50 9 $3,260.00
60 Removal of Driveway SY 378.8 5.00$          1,894.00$             $6.00 $2,272.80 $6.00 $2,272.80 $12.50 $4,735.00 $16.00 $6,060.80 $15.00 $5,682.00 11 $4,210.00
61 Sidewalk, PCC, 4" SY 106.9 45.00$        4,810.50$             $49.50 $5,291.55 $68.00 $7,269.20 $75.00 $8,017.50 $75.00 $8,017.50 $100.00 $10,690.00 74 $7,860.00
62 Sidewalk, PCC, 6" SY 114 55.00$        6,270.00$             $51.00 $5,814.00 $71.50 $8,151.00 $125.00 $14,250.00 $78.00 $8,892.00 $100.00 $11,400.00 85 $9,710.00
63 Detectable Warning, Cast Iron SF 160 50.00$        8,000.00$             $48.00 $7,680.00 $40.00 $6,400.00 $45.00 $7,200.00 $44.00 $7,040.00 $50.00 $8,000.00 45 $7,270.00
64 Driveway, Paved, PCC, 6" SY 416.9 50.00$        20,845.00$           $45.00 $18,760.50 $38.00 $15,842.20 $75.00 $31,267.50 $41.50 $17,301.35 $100.00 $41,690.00 60 $24,980.00
65 Driveway, Granular TON 26.9 27.50$        739.75$                $43.50 $1,170.15 $43.50 $1,170.15 $35.00 $941.50 $62.00 $1,667.80 $50.00 $1,345.00 47 $1,260.00
66 Pavement Removal SY 6566.1 7.50$          49,245.75$           $5.35 $35,128.64 $5.35 $35,128.64 $4.65 $30,532.37 $8.00 $52,528.80 $10.00 $65,661.00 7 $43,800.00
67 Painted Pavement Markings, Waterborne or Solvent-based STA 13.11 150.00$      1,966.50$             $60.00 $786.60 $60.00 $786.60 $65.00 $852.15 $67.00 $878.37 $150.00 $1,966.50 80 $1,060.00
68 Painted Symbols and Legends, Waterborne or Solvent-based EA 8 250.00$      2,000.00$             $80.00 $640.00 $80.00 $640.00 $85.00 $680.00 $90.00 $720.00 $150.00 $1,200.00 97 $780.00
69 Temporary Traffic Control LS 1 20,000.00$ 20,000.00$           $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,250.00 $7,250.00 $7,250.00 $7,250.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 8100 $8,100.00
70 Sign Panels SF 78.25 20.00$        1,565.00$             $25.00 $1,956.25 $25.00 $1,956.25 $27.50 $2,151.88 $28.00 $2,191.00 $25.00 $1,956.25 26 $2,050.00
71 Sign Posts LF 140 12.50$        1,750.00$             $11.00 $1,540.00 $11.00 $1,540.00 $12.50 $1,750.00 $13.00 $1,820.00 $25.00 $3,500.00 15 $2,030.00
72 Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching AC 0.6 4,000.00$   2,400.00$             $2,395.80 $1,437.48 $2,395.80 $1,437.48 $2,650.00 $1,590.00 $5,050.00 $3,030.00 $5,000.00 $3,000.00 3498 $2,100.00
73 Sod SQ 260 75.00$        19,500.00$           $75.00 $19,500.00 $75.00 $19,500.00 $80.00 $20,800.00 $68.00 $17,680.00 $75.00 $19,500.00 75 $19,400.00
74 Filter Socks, 8" LF 3250 3.50$          11,375.00$           $3.00 $9,750.00 $3.00 $9,750.00 $3.00 $9,750.00 $2.00 $6,500.00 $2.50 $8,125.00 3 $8,780.00
75 Filter Socks, Removal LF 3250 1.50$          4,875.00$             $0.40 $1,300.00 $0.40 $1,300.00 $0.40 $1,300.00 $0.50 $1,625.00 $0.50 $1,625.00 0 $1,430.00
76 Combined Concrete Sidewalk and Retaining Wall CY 94.7 1,100.00$   104,170.00$         $765.00 $72,445.50 $875.00 $82,862.50 $775.00 $73,392.50 $985.00 $93,279.50 $1,000.00 $94,700.00 880 $83,340.00

BID AVERAGE
February 25, 

2020 @ 2:00 PM
BASE BID ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE Pirc-Tobin Construction Inc BWC Excavating, LC

K. Cunningham Construction 
Inc

Peterson Contractors Inc Veith Construction Corp

170

ITEM 19.



ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

BID AVERAGE
February 25, 

2020 @ 2:00 PM
BASE BID ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE Pirc-Tobin Construction Inc BWC Excavating, LC

K. Cunningham Construction 
Inc

Peterson Contractors Inc Veith Construction Corp

77 Concrete Steps, Type B SF 159 100.00$      15,900.00$           $103.00 $16,377.00 $103.00 $16,377.00 $65.00 $10,335.00 $113.00 $17,967.00 $75.00 $11,925.00 92 $14,600.00
78 Handrail, Aluminum LF 62 100.00$      6,200.00$             $100.00 $6,200.00 $105.00 $6,510.00 $150.00 $9,300.00 $74.00 $4,588.00 $250.00 $15,500.00 136 $8,420.00
79 Mobilization LS 1 60,000.00$ 60,000.00$           $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $110,000.00 $110,000.00 $62,500.00 $62,500.00 $175,000.00 $175,000.00 83500 $83,500.00
80 Maintenance of Postal Service LS 1 1,500.00$   1,500.00$             $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $250.00 $250.00 $1,350.00 $1,350.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 3420 $3,420.00
81 Maintenance of Solid Waste Collection LS 1 1,500.00$   1,500.00$             $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,475.00 $1,475.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 4395 $4,400.00
82 Concrete Washout LS 1 2,500.00$   2,500.00$             $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 2720 $2,720.00

$1,153,300.00 $1,019,447.57 $1,025,790.92 $1,168,935.14 $1,245,701.65 $1,531,425.75 $1,198,510.00

Addenda 1 X X X X X

Addenda 2 X X X X X

Bid Security (10%) X X X X X

Bidder Status Form X X X X X

Non-Collusion Affidavit X X X X X

TOTAL BASE BID

171

ITEM 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 
 
 DATE: February 25, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 12th Street Reconstruction Project 
  Project No. RC-059-3196 
  Temporary Construction Easements 
 
This project involves the removal and replacement of 12th St from College St to Tremont 
St as well as Walnut St from 11th St to 12th St. Walnut St is being lowered to improve 
sight distance to the 12th St intersection.  In addition to full street reconstruction, the 
project will look to improve storm sewer and water main infrastructure.  The intersection 
when completed will become a 4-way stop.  
 

The project will require the acquisition of temporary construction easements from 4 
properties to complete the project. This project is scheduled to start in the 2020 
construction season.  
 
We recommend that the City Council approve and execute Parcel 1,2,3 and 4 
Temporary Construction Easements and record at the black hawk county courthouse. 
 
 
xc: Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer, PE 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

172

ITEM 20.



173

ITEM 20.



174

ITEM 20.



175

ITEM 20.



176

ITEM 20.



177

ITEM 20.



178

ITEM 20.



179

ITEM 20.



180

ITEM 20.



181

ITEM 20.



182

ITEM 20.



183

ITEM 20.



184

ITEM 20.



185

ITEM 20.



186

ITEM 20.



187

ITEM 20.



188

ITEM 20.



189

ITEM 20.



190

ITEM 20.



191

ITEM 20.



192

ITEM 20.



193

ITEM 20.



194

ITEM 20.



195

ITEM 20.



196

ITEM 20.



197

ITEM 20.



198

ITEM 20.



199

ITEM 20.



200

ITEM 20.



201

ITEM 20.



202

ITEM 20.



203

ITEM 20.



204

ITEM 20.



205

ITEM 20.



206

ITEM 20.



207

ITEM 20.



208

ITEM 20.



209

ITEM 20.



210

ITEM 20.



211

ITEM 20.



212

ITEM 20.



213

ITEM 20.



214

ITEM 20.



215

ITEM 20.



216

ITEM 20.



217

ITEM 20.



218

ITEM 20.



219

ITEM 20.



220

ITEM 20.



221

ITEM 20.



222

ITEM 20.



223

ITEM 20.



224

ITEM 20.



225

ITEM 20.



226

ITEM 20.



227

ITEM 20.



228

ITEM 20.



229

ITEM 20.



230

ITEM 20.



231

ITEM 20.



232

ITEM 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 
 
 DATE: February 26, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair  
  City Project Number SA-002-3182 
  Set Public Hearing for Right of Way Acquisition 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to repair the Sanitary Sewer for Oak Park. The 
project will require the acquisition of temporary and permanent easements from eight 
(8) properties to complete repairs. This project is scheduled to start in the 2020 
construction season.  
 
Iowa law requires that the City Council hold a public hearing to authorize proceeding 
with the project, including the purchase of right of way.  The public hearing offers an 
opportunity for the public, especially those from whom the easements will be purchased, 
to comment on the project. 
 
We recommend that the Council schedule a Public Hearing for March 16, 2020, to be 
held at the regularly scheduled City Council meeting. 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

233

ITEM 21.



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSAL TO UNDERTAKE A PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FOR THE OAK PARK SANITARY SEWER REPAIR PROJECT 

AND TO AUTHORIZE ACQUISITION OF PRIVATE PROPERTY FOR SAID PROJECT 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on the 16th day of March, 2020, at 7:00 o’clock p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, a Public Hearing will be held by the City Council of said City on the proposal to undertake 
a public improvement project for the oak park sanitary sewer repair project and to authorize 
acquisition of private property for the project. 
 
Written objections to the proposal may be filed with City Clerk on or before the date of hearing, 
and all objections will be heard at the time of said hearing. 
 
This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the 2nd  
day of March, 2020. 
 
 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

234

ITEM 21.



235

ITEM 21.



236

ITEM 21.



237

ITEM 21.



238

ITEM 21.



239

ITEM 21.



240

ITEM 21.



241

ITEM 21.



242

ITEM 21.



243

ITEM 21.



244

ITEM 21.



245

ITEM 21.



246

ITEM 21.



247

ITEM 21.



248

ITEM 21.



249

ITEM 21.



250

ITEM 21.



251

ITEM 21.



252

ITEM 21.



253

ITEM 21.



254

ITEM 21.



255

ITEM 21.



256

ITEM 21.



257

ITEM 21.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 TO: City Clerk 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green    

 DATE: February 21, 2020 

 SUBJECT: VETO OF COUNCIL RESOLUTION #21,893 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-187: Mayor Powers and Duties 

 

1. In the Special Meeting of February 20, 2020, the Cedar Falls City Council passed Resolution 

#21,893: “Resolution approving immediate implementation of the Public Safety Program 

including reorganization of the Public Safety Department.” 

2. In accordance with my mayoral powers under part b.3 of reference (a), I am vetoing the 

above Resolution #21,893.  

3. The City Council failed to follow basic principles of good governance in the process of 

approving the above resolution; the special meeting allowed staff less than two working days 

to prepare a presentation, engage stakeholders, and obtain critical feedback on a plan which 

called for departmental reorganization and expected staff layoffs.  

4. The only emergency in this matter was a concern by some council members that their desired 

course of action would be less assured after the special election scheduled for March 24th.  

As a result, they chose to appoint a council member friendly to their cause, then to call a 

special meeting which ensured a supermajority. 

5. To be clear, I am vetoing this action not on the merits of decision itself, but on the process; 

the City Council had a responsibility, in the public interest, to hold this very important 

community meeting after the special election. Such a move would have prudently given city 

staff the time necessary to prepare and present a fully-vetted plan to the council and public.   

Instead, the Council’s actions give the appearance of closed-door dealing, risking long-term 

damage to the credibility of the city government and its decision-making processes.   

6. One of my core duties as Mayor is to seek to ensure fairness the conduct of local 

government.  As I believe the process and timeline used for the Special Meeting was 

decidedly unfair, I must veto the resulting council action. 

 

# 

XC: City Administrator 

        City Attorney 

        City Council 

258

ITEM 22.



Councilor Simon Harding
Cedar Falls City Council (4th Ward)

220 Clay St.
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Feb. 27th, 2020

Mayor Rob Green
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay St.
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Refer to the Committee of the Whole discussion of a city-sponsored 
fireworks display

Mayor Green,

At the January 20th, 2020 Cedar Falls City Council meeting, Rick Sharp spoke during the 
public forum about Cedar Falls having a fireworks show. After talking with him more, he sent 
me the following information (page 2, 3 & 4). I have read through his information and layout 
and support his vision as something that is possible or at least a great starting point. I would 
love to see this city have a 4th of July fireworks show.

Thanks for considering this request.

Sincerely,

Simon Harding
Cedar Falls City Council (Ward 4)

259

ITEM 24.



Letter from Rick Sharp:

I contacted someone I know that works at J&M Displays, one of the largest fireworks display 
companies in Iowa. They do the shows at Waterloo and other surrounding areas.

If we want a good 15-18 minute show, it will cost at least $10,000

If we want an AWESOME 20 minute show it will be around $15,000.

We need to book with them by mid March at the latest so they can get another crew lined up 
to do our show. They are doing a large show in Waterloo at the water park on July 3 (Friday) 
and a smaller one somewhere on July 4 (Saturday). Since we are fortunate enough to have the 
July 4 celebration fall on a weekend, I think holding ours on Saturday July 4 would be best. I 
see that the Mayor's Fireworks show in Waterloo will also be Saturday July 4. As I've stated 
before, we are big enough to have our own show and I truly believe our residents would rather
stay here and watch the show versus going to Waterloo. With enough time and effort, down 
the road it could be a destination event for fireworks like Clear Lake is! If you didn't want to 
compete with Waterloo on July 4 and hold it on July 3 instead, you can never see too many 
firework shows!

J&M Displays contact information is: Office: 800-648-3890 or 319-394-3890 / Fax: 267-392-
3890 

website:https://www.jandmdisplays.com/

The Mayor's Fireworks show in Waterloo last year was sponsored by MercyOne and Hawkeye 
Community College, both agencies have buildings and staff here in Cedar Falls. Since I am 
requesting it to be held at Prairie Lakes Park, I think the city should have no problem getting 
them and some of the businesses in or around the IP to donate towards it as well.

Attached is an image where I see how this could work. The launch area would be by the boat 
ramps. We can secure this by blocking access to the public off of Viking Road. Only essential 
personnel will be allowed here. The viewing area would be the majority of the bike trail 
around the lake and the green spaces. Public Works can mow some of the area to allow more 
access for people to sit. We can stage porta potties all around the trail so people don't have to 
walk too far to get one. We can work with the businesses around the lake so they will allow 
parking in their lots. Being that it's after work hours, that should not be a problem. They can 
even tape off certain areas of their lots to allow room for their employees to park their. We can
also work with the business and tape off walking paths to get to the trails, that the way the 
public isn't taking short cuts through their property. I highlighted an area for the band that is 
owned by the Mudd Group I believe. However, it's been an empty green space for a number of 
years. The city can work out a deal with them to mow the property prior to the event and put 
the band, food vendors and a few porta potties there.

I think for sponsors, in addition to MercyOne and HCC, why not ask the Mudd Group, 
Veridian, Martin Bros, etc. since the fireworks will be in their backyards so to speak.

260

ITEM 24.



The location is far enough away from residential neighborhoods, and since it will be heavily 
promoted, those with pets and PTSD can make appropriate plans to prepare for it. From the 
number of people that I have talked to over the years, a majority of them with PTSD or pets 
don't mind the noise if they can prepare for it. They expect explosions on July 3 or 4th. It's the
randomness of fireworks over a given period of days that is unexpected that bothers them. 
Plus, at a venue like this people may be able to light off their own fireworks pre-show 
perhaps? Another good thing with this location is the availability of parking (if the businesses 
allow it). Plus, there are many different ways for the people to arrive and leave the area, which
should result in minimal traffic congestion before and after the show.

Thank you for your time and consideration on this matter. Hopefully we can have fireworks 
this year. I am willing to offer my assistance in whatever it takes to make this happen.

261

ITEM 24.



262

ITEM 24.


	Top
	1. Regular Meeting of February 17, 2020
	200217MINUTES

	2. Special Meeting of February 20, 2020
	200220MINUTES-SPECIAL

	3. Public Hearing - PSE 2020 Permeable Alley Reconstruction
	1. PH Memo - 2020 Permeable Alley
	2. EOPC_2020.02.12_Permeable Alley_Final

	4. Resolution for Public Hearing - PSE 2020 Permeable Alley Reconstruction
	5. Public Hearing - PSE 2020 Street Construction
	1. PH - 2020 Street Construction
	2. EOPC_2020.02.12_Street_Const_Final

	6. Resolution for Public Hearing - PSE 2020 Street Construction
	7. Proclamation - Read Across Cedar Falls Day
	National Read Across America Day2020

	8. Appointments 3-02
	1-2020_02_28-Historic_Preservation_Commission_Appointments
	2-HPC - Timmer 1-17-20

	9. Council Work Session Minutes 2/17/2020
	Comm of the Whole (Special) 02 17 2020 

	10. Liquor Licenses
	Liquor Beer 3-2-2020

	11. 2019 CLG Annual Report for Historic Preservation Commission
	1. Memo to Council - 2019 CLG annual report
	2. 2019 CLG report
	3. 2020 - Work Plan
	4. Annual Report Certification
	5..Wild historic district nomination certificate
	6..Wild historic District nomination letter
	7. HPC Annual Summary 2019

	12. HCG Site Plan-Residence Inn Hotel
	1_CC staff report  on 03-02-20
	2.Proposed Site Plan for Residence Inn
	3.Proposed Utility Plan for Residence Inn
	4.Proposed Landscape Plan for Residence Inn
	5.Proposed Elevations for Residence Inn
	6. Site Details for Residence Inn

	13. Board of Adjustment Revised Rules of Procedure
	1 city council memo on BOA rule of procedure meeting change on 2-26-20
	Board of Adjustment Rules of Procedure on RED-LINE 2-18-20
	3 resolution for the BOA rules of procedure on 2-26-20

	14. Application for BHC MPO for TAP Funding - Lake Street Trail Project
	cc memo for TAP funding on the lake street trail 2-26-20
	Lake Street Trail ITAP Application 2-26-20
	TAP Lake Street trail Resolution 2-26-20

	15. STBG funding application-Main Street reconstruction
	cc memo for STBG funding on main street 2-26-20
	STBG Main Street Resolution 2-26-20

	16. Rehab Contract - 827 W. 4th St.
	Council memo-Home rehab 827 W 4th St - shepek
	Contract for HOME rehab - 827 W 4th St - Shepek

	17. 2020 Sturgis Falls Agreement
	1. Sturgis Falls Agreement
	2. Sturgis - One year Agreement

	18. University Avenue Phase 3 Final Out
	1. University Ave Phase 3 Final Out Memo
	2. Pay Est 19-Final Retainage Release
	3. SIGNED CO#4
	4. LIEN WAIVERS
	5. Bonds

	19. Low Bid - 12th Street Reconstruction
	1. Low Bid - 12th Street Reconstruction
	2. 02.25.2020_Bid_Tabulation

	20. Easements-12th Street Reconstruction
	1.12th Street Reconstruction Acquisition
	2.2474_001

	21. Set Public Hearing - PI for Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project
	1.Memo Oak Park Set PH
	2. PH
	3.PLANS_2019-10-25_Prelim

	22. Repass, over Mayor's veto, Resolution #21,893
	2020-02-21_Mayor_Veto_Action_For_#R21893

	23. Allow Bills and Payroll of March 2, 2020
	24. CF Fireworks display referral
	Fireworks Referral

	Bottom

